
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, July 28, 2014

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record.  A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 6 - 20

Regular PM Meeting - July 14, 2014

3. Public in Attendance

3.1 Gold Quill Award of Excellence, IABC re:  City of Kelowna - My Downtown:
Bernard Avenue Revitalization Community Engagement

Presentation of Award from the International Association of Business
Communicators (IABC) for Communication Management in a Government
Communication Program.

4. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0013 - 290 & 310 Lochview Road, Randall &
Stacie Mosicki and Rodney & Deborah Syryda

21 - 38

Mayor to invite the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative, to come forward.
To consider a staff recommendation NOT to rezone the properites from the A1
- Agriculture 1 zone to the RR1 - Rural Residential zone.

4.2 Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0006 - 342 Valley Road,
Adolph & Janet Hait and Clarence Rode

39 - 60

Mayor to invite the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative, to come forward.
To consider a staff recommendation NOT to support an application to the
Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for a “Subdivision of Agricultural Land
Reserve” under Section 21(2) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act. The

1



subdivision is more specifically a “Homesite Severance” request as per ALC
Policy #11 – Homesite Severance on ALR Lands.

4.3 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0017 - 815 Juniper Road, Brad Ferrell 61 - 80

The applicant is requesting permission to rezone a portion of the subject
property from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling
Housing zone to facilitate a two lot subdivision.

4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10989 (Z14-0017) - 815 Juniper Road, Brad Ferrell 81 - 82

To give Bylaw No. 10989 first reading.

4.4 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0018 - 1781 Capistrano Drive, Mahesh Raj
Tripathi

83 - 91

To rezone the subject property to RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to allow a
secondary suite.

4.4.1 Bylaw No. 10987 (Z14-0018) - 1781 Capistrano Drive, Mehesh Raj
Tripathi

92 - 92

To give Bylaw No. 10987 first reading.

4.5 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0024 - 505 Doyle Avenue, Interior Health
Authority

93 - 110

To rezone a portion of the subject property from the C4 - Urban Centre
Commercial zone to the C7 - Central Business Commercial zone.

4.5.1 Bylaw No. 10991 (Z14-0024) - 505 Doyle Avenue, Interior Health
Authority

111 - 112

To give Bylaw No. 10991 first reading.

4.6 Rezoning Application No. Z10-0044, Extension Request - 120 Homer Road,
Nathan Morden

113 - 116

To extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10403 from June
20, 2014 to August 12, 2014.

5. Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

5.1 Bylaw No. 10914 (OCP13-0020) - 1055 Frost Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. &
City of Kelowna

117 - 118

Requires a majority of all Members of Council.
To adopt Bylaw No. 10914 in order to change the Future Land Use designation
of the subject property from the Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density and
Single/Two Unit Residential designations to the Single/Two Unit Residential
designation.

2



5.2 Bylaw No. 10915 (Z13-0043) - 1055 Frost Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. &
City of Kelowna

119 - 120

To adopt Bylaw No. 10915 in order to rezone the subject property fromthe A1
- Agriculture 1 and RU1h - Large Lot Housing (Hillside) zones to the RU3 -
Small Lot Housing zone.

5.3 Bylaw No. 10972 (Z14-0014) - 890 Mayfair Road, Henry & Ingrid Jenzen 121 - 121

To adopt Bylaw No. 10972 in order to rezone the subject property from the
RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c - Large Lot Housing with Carriage
House zone.

6. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

6.1 Quarterly Report Update 122 - 137

To provide Council with an update of the City’s activities for the second quarter
of 2014.

6.2 Revitatlization Tax Exemption Agreement - 552-554 Leon Avenue 138 - 149

The applicant is applying to enter into a Revitalization Tax Exemption
Agreement in accordance with Revitalization Tax Exemption Program Bylaw
No. 9561.

6.3 Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement - 1155 Brookside Avenue 150 - 160

The applicant is applying to enter into a Revitalization Tax Exemption
Agreement in accordance with Revitalization Tax Exemption Program Bylaw
No. 9561.

6.4 Fascieux Creek Restoration Improvements 161 - 164

To provide in kind assistance to the Green Parent Committee and School
District 23 in order to restore habitat over a portion of Fascieux Creek in front of
the KLO Middle school. The City of Kelowna will obtain a right of way over
Fascieux Creek in exchange for this assistance.

6.5 SEKID Boundary Inclusion for 4050 Casorso Road 165 - 170

To respond to a request for boundary modification by the South East Kelowna
Irrigation District.

6.6 Rescind Ownership Housing Agreements 171 - 175

To direct staff to rescind all existing ownership Housing Agreements.

6.6.1 Bylaw No. 10873 - A Bylaw to Rescind Ownership Housing Agreement
Bylaw Nos. 9525, 9694, 9713, 9737, 9834, 9884, 10182, 10183 &
10601

176 - 177

3



To give Bylaw No. 10873 first, second and third readings.

6.7 Amendment of Sister Cities Policy 178 - 187

To seek Council approval of revisions to Policy 355 pertaining to Sister City
relationships.

6.8 Service Collaboration Agreement with Alllied Health 188 - 203

To provide Council with an overview of the expanded collaboration between the
City and Allied Health that will further bridge the connection between health care
and community programming. The focus of this collaboration is to support
individuals’ self management of their health.

6.9 Ben Lee Park - Playground Improvement Project 204 - 209

For Council to support the renovation and retrofit of the playground at Ben
Lee Park in order to submit for the 2014 Enabling Accessibility in Communities
Grant.

6.10 Ellis Street Corridor Plan 210 - 231

To receive Council endorsement for the Ellis Street Corridor Plan as the basis
for the implementation of road cross sections and coordination of streetscape
elements along Ellis Street from Bernard Avenue to the Library Parkade.

7. Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

7.1 Bylaw No. 10936 - Road Closure Bylaw, Portion of 1908 Henkel Road 232 - 233

Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected
by the proposed road closure to come forward.
To adopt Bylaw No. 10936 in order to authorize the City to permanently close
and remove the highway dedication of a portion of highway on 1908 Henkel
Road.

7.2 Bylaw No. 10982 - Amendment No. 1 to City of Kelowna Election Sign Bylaw
No. 10411

234 - 234

To adopt Bylaw No. 10982 in order to amend City of Kelowna Election Sign
Bylaw No. 10411.

7.3 Bylaw No. 10983 - Amendment No. 1 to Heritage Building Tax Exemption
Bylaw No. 10966

235 - 241

To adopt Bylaw No. 10983 in order to amend Heritage Building Tax Exemption
Bylaw No. 10966.

7.4 Bylaw No. 10988 - A Bylaw to Rescind Ownership Housing Agreement
Authorization Bylaw No. 10163

242 - 242

To adopt Bylaw No. 10988 in order to authorize the discharge of a Housing

4



Agreement for Affordable Housing registered on 695 Webster Road.

8. Mayor and Councillor Items

9. Termination

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 7/28/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (DB) 

Application: Z14-0013 Owner: 
Randall & Stacie Mosicki and 
Rodney & Deborah Syryda 

Address: 290 & 310 Lochview Road Applicant: Randy Mosicki 

Subject: Rezoning  

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) 

Proposed OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agricultural 1 

Proposed Zone: RR1 – Rural Residential 1 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0013 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 3 Section 7&8 Township 23 ODYD Plan 41162, located at 
310 Lochview Rd and Lot 4 Sections 7&8 Township 23 ODYD Plan 41162, located at 290 Lochview 
Rd from the A1 – Agricultural 1 to the RR1 – Rural Residential 1 zone NOT be considered by 
Council. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a staff recommendation NOT to rezone the subject properties from the A1 – 
Agricultural 1 zone to the RR1 – Rural Residential zone. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Services 

The subject properties are located in the Glenmore-Clifton-Dilworth area of Kelowna and are 
designated as S2RESH (Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside) in the Official Community Plan.  
This rezoning application is required as the applicant is proposing to subdivide two (2) existing 
lots into five (5) lots. 

Lot Configuration 

The two existing panhandle lots currently have legal road frontage via two separate 6 metre 
wide panhandles fronting on Prince Edward Drive while the physical access is via Lochview Road 

21



Z14-0013 – Page 2 

 
 

(See Map 1 below).  Please note that Lochview Road is a private road that provides access to 
fifteen (15) lots via an access easement and the road currently does not meet City standards. 

The lots were subdivided in 1989 prior to the implementation of City Council’s Panhandle Lot 
Policy1 and therefore the existing configuration is considered to be “grand-fathered”. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

According to Council Policy, legal road frontage to the proposed lots would not be permitted via 
a panhandle.  The policy clearly states that a panhandle in a residential subdivision must provide 
physical access (e.g. a driveway).  The proposed configuration of the 5 lot subdivision is contrary 
to this policy as it identifies 3 panhandle lots fronting on Prince Edward Drive, none of which can 
provide physical access through the panhandle to the proposed lots (due to steep topography). 

The policy also stipulates that the Approving Officer must exercise independent judgement when 
evaluating panhandle lot proposals.  The singular purpose of a panhandle lot is to provide safe 
ingress and egress from a public roadway.  

Furthermore, Section 944 of the Local Government Act2 provides that if a parcel being created 
by subdivision, the minimum frontage “must be the greater of 

(i) 10% of the perimeter of that parcel; or  
(ii) The minimum frontage that the local government has established under a bylaw.” 

The minimum lot width in the RR1 zone is 40 metres.  The Act also identifies that the Approving 
Officer must evaluate if there are any other means of conventional subdivision, whether 
independently or together with abutting properties.   

 

                                                
1
 Council Policy 196 (Panhandle Lot Policy) adopted March 18th, 1991 

2
 Section 944 of the LGA 

22



Z14-0013 – Page 3 

 
 

 

 

Access 

As submitted, the proposal clearly does not meet the above mentioned Local Government Act 
requirements.  The proposed frontage does not meet the required minimum lot width (40m) 
under the RR1 subdivision regulations. 

In addition to the above regulations, is the question of physical access to the site.  The 
developer is proposing physical access to three of the five lots via a private access easement on 
Lochview Road without dedicating and upgrading the existing private road.   

The Subdivision Approving Officer and Development Engineering Manager have both indicated 
that the dedication and construction of Lochview Road to a hillside standard is required to allow 
the subject properties to be subdivided.  The dedication and subsequent construction will 
provide the necessary frontage and access in compliance with current regulations while 
maintaining public interest and meeting the long term objectives of the OCP. 

The applicant has indicated that the dedication and construction of this section of Lochview 
Road from Clifton Road to the subject properties would be cost prohibitive for the proposed 
subdivision.  The applicant also indicated that getting support from 100% of the easement title 
holders may be extremely challenging.   

To date, the Approving Officer has advised the applicant that the proposed configuration does 
not comply with the provisions of the Land Title Act3 regulations, Council Policy or the 
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw and therefore approval cannot be granted based on 
the current subdivision proposal. 

Staff have indicated that the current OCP designation for the Lochview area does allow for more 
density and that sanitary sewer will be available in the near future given that the North Clifton 
ASP has received positive support from Council.  As staff understand it, a rezoning and 
subdivision application for the first two phases of the North Clifton ASP will be submitted in the 
second half of 2014.   

Variances 

As proposed, the subdivision will also require two (2) variances: a variance for the road width 
(e.g. to permit a narrower Prince Edward Drive) and a variance to allow physical access to three 
(3) of the proposed five lots utilizing the existing Lochview Road (via private easement). 

The first variance is to reduce the Prince Edward Drive extension width from 10.5m to 7.5m.  The 
rationale provided by the applicant is that a narrower road width will reduce retaining 
requirements and thereby reduce construction costs for the proposed extension.  The applicant 
also indicated that the 7.5m width is sufficient to accommodate the limited municipal services 
proposed which do not include municipal sewer.  

However, the road width variance is not supported by either the Subdivision Approving Officer or 
the City of Kelowna Engineer.  The Development Engineering Branch states that any road 
extension must meet the full hillside standard (e.g. SS-H13), including the construction of curb 
and gutter and storm drainage system including catch basins and drywells, street lights, and 
adjustment and/or re-location of existing utility poles to accommodate this construction.  

                                                
3
 Section 86 (1) (c) of the Land Title Act 

23



Z14-0013 – Page 4 

 
 

Development Engineering staff further indicate that once sewer becomes available in the area, it 
will be very difficult to provide a sanitary service within the reduced road standard. 

Furthermore, the City’s Subdivision Approving Officer cannot approve a subdivision unless it 
meets the requirements of the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw4 which regulates and 
prescribes minimum standards for the dimensions, locations, alignment and gradient of a road5.  
The need for significant retaining on the Prince Edward Drive extension (if completed in 
accordance with City standards) further reinforces staff position that the existing Lochview Road 
would be the preferred future access for the subdivision.   

The second variance requested is to permit physical access to three of the proposed five lots via 
the Lochview Road access easement.  This variance request is truly not a variance to any of the 
City of Kelowna Bylaws as this decision falls within the authority and judgement of the Approving 
Officer.  The Approving Officer has previously clearly communicated a decision on this issue.  

It is worth reiterating that the two parent parcels are accessed via Lochview Road which is a 
private road and currently does not meet City standards.  Further, Lochview Road provides access 
to an additional thirteen (13) lots via an access easement.  To date, the applicant has not 
provided any supporting documentation regarding the easement amendment.  However, the 
applicant has indicated that getting all existing easement users to support additional lots to the 
easement could be a challenge. 

Therefore, staff opinion is that providing access to a lot via a private easement road poses a 
significant risk to the City.  The total length of the private road is significant, is not maintained 
by the City of Kelowna and there are no other access options for these properties. 

Future Development 

The Single/Two Unit Residential Future Land Use designation recognizes that servicing of the lots 
would be feasible within the current time frame of the OCP.  To consider a rural residential zone 
and subsequent subdivision as proposed could compromises the potential for the area to 
redevelop to a hillside standard when servicing is available. 

The North Clifton ASP and associated development will bring municipal services to this area and 
will therefore provide the adequate infrastructure to urbanize this area in the future.  With a 
minimum parcel size of 1 ha and given that the properties are not serviced by a community sewer 
system, the addition of three septic systems in a steep area above Okanagan Lake poses an 
unnecessary environmental risk that could easily be mitigated with proper servicing. 

Given the above, staff recommend that Lochview Road must be dedicated and constructed to a 
hillside standard in order to provide safe access to the neighbourhood.  Furthermore, staff feel 
that cluster housing would be the most appropriate development standard given the challenging 
topography, while achieving reasonable densities and will reduce potential negative effects on 
future development potential in the area.  The development of large rural lots without proper 
municipal services will not achieve the objectives identified in the OCP. 

Therefore, staff feel that this application is premature and could compromise the future 
development potential of this area including complicating the development of the properties 
directly north of the site and compounding an existing compromised road access. 

                                                
4 Bylaw No. 7900 - Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw 
5 Section 87 of the Land Title Act and Section 938 of the Local Government Act 

24



Z14-0013 – Page 5 

 
 

 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant approached the City of Kelowna in 2008 and again in 2012 with a subdivision 
inquiry for the subject properties.  At the time, City staff were concerned that the proposal 
would orphan some of the surrounding properties and thereby reduce the future development 
potential in the area. 

City staff requested that the applicant prepare a simplified Area Redevelopment Plan that 
identified which properties could be included and how the area would be serviced and safely 
accessed.  The plan that was provided to staff was essentially the existing proposal which, in the 
opinion of staff, did not provide sufficient information for the area.  

Subsequently, staff provided feedback to the submitted plan and identified alternatives for a 
subdivision that met City bylaws and that could be supported by City staff.  The applicant then 
indicated the suggestions provided by staff were not acceptable given the construction and 
dedication costs associated with Lochview Road and the existing access easement.  The applicant 
also indicated that obtaining support from all users of the access easement to dedicate Lochview 
could be very challenging.   

The Subdivision Approving Officer advised that the proposed subdivision (as shown in this report) 
would not be supported and provided the City’s rationale which formed the staff position as 
identified above.  However, the applicant requested that the application be forwarded to City 
Council as submitted. 

It must be noted that the request to move forward with this proposal would circumvent the 
authority of the Subdivision Approving Officer and City Engineer.  Staff strongly recommend that 
this application not be supported. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to amend the zoning classification of the subject properties in order to 
facilitate a 5 lot subdivision.   It must also be noted that the proposed subdivision layout will 
require a variance to the Subdivision and Servicing Bylaw and an Environmental/Hazardous 
Development permit.   

The subject properties are located in the Glenmore-Clifton-Dilworth Sector of the City in a 
predominantly single family neighbourhood. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North A1 - Agricultural Resource Protection 

East RR3 – Rural Residential Single Two Unit Residential 

South A1- Agricultural Resource Protection 

West 
P4 - Utilities 

W1 – Okanagan Lake 
Resource Protection 

Resource Protection 

 

 
 
 
 

25



Z14-0013 – Page 6 

 
 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 290 and 310 Lochview Road 

 
 

4.3 Current Development Policies  

4.4 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Ensure context sensitive housing development 

Panhandle Lots. Prohibit lakefront panhandle lots unless such are in the public interest (e.g. 
allow the City to secure foreshore dedication). 
 
Cluster Housing. Require new residential development to be in the form of cluster housing on / 
or near environmentally sensitive areas and areas of steeper slopes to lessen site disturbance and 
environmental impact on those areas identified on the Future Land Use Map 4.1 as single-two 
unit residential hillside. Steeply sloped areas should be retained as natural open space, public or 
private. The intent of the clustering would be to preserve features identified through the 
Development Permit process that otherwise might be developed and to maximize open space in 
order to: 

a. Protect environmentally sensitive areas of a development site and preserve them on a 
permanent basis utilizing the most appropriate tools available; 
b. Facilitate creative and flexible site design that is sensitive to the land’s natural 
features and adaptive to the natural topography; 
c. Decrease or minimize non-point source (i.e. asphalt roofs, driveways and parking) 
pollution impacts by reducing the amount of impervious surfaces in site development; 
d. Promote overall cost savings on infrastructure installation and maintenance; and 
e. Provide opportunities for social interaction, walking and hiking in open space areas. 

26



Z14-0013 – Page 7 

 
 

 
 
 
Land Use Designation Definitions 

 
Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside (S2RESH)  
 

Single detached homes for occupancy by one family, single detached homes with a secondary 
suite or carriage house, semi-detached buildings used for two dwelling units, modular homes, and 
those complementary uses (i.e. minor care centres, minor public services / utilities, and 
neighbourhood parks), which are integral components of urban neighbourhoods. This designation 
applies to suburban hillside areas where slopes are over 20%. Subdivisions on hillsides over 20% 
slope will be required to rezone to a hillside zone. 

Technical Comments  

4.5 Kelowna Fire Department 

The properties on Lochview Rd are not easily accessible by a fire truck - the road is too narrow - 
a 6 metre minimum paved road is required with no parking signs. Should there be any vehicles on 
the road, it is not passable by an emergency vehicle. The road also exceeds the 1 in 12 grade in 
many areas to the northwest. The road does not allow for emergency vehicle turn around. Fire 
flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. 
The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 60ltr/sec flow. Address for each lot shall be visible 
from the roadway. 

4.6 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memorandum for full list of Works & Services 
requirements.  The following is a summary of the required works and services for this rezoning 
application: 

 Extend, dedicate and construct Prince Edward Road to a full hillside standard; 

 Dedicate and construct Lochview Road to a full hillside standard; 

 All proposed works and servicing shall be in accordance with Bylaw 7900; 

 Legal frontage to be provided for all proposed lots; 

 A hydro-geotechnical report is required; and 

 Adequately sized water, sewer and drainage systems must be provided. 

 

4.7 IPLAN – Parks and Public Spaces  

The City has adopted policy to extend a linear park corridor north of the existing Lochview Trail 
(As per the Linear Park Master Plan Waterfront Walkway # 136 - Class 5 Narrow multi-use) and 
therefore will require the securing of a linear park corridor through these properties as a 
condition of rezoning.  The Applicant needs to prove out an alignment based on City of Kelowna 
Trail Standards. 

4.8 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  April 9, 2014 
Referral Comments Received:  May 20, 2014 
Date of Public Notification Received: June 6, 2014 

27



Z14-0013 – Page 8 

 
 

 

5.0 Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0013 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 3 Section 7&8 Township 23 ODYD Plan 41162 and Lot 4 
Sections 7&8 Township 23 ODYD Plan 41162 from the A1 – Agricultural 1 to the RR1 – Rural 
Residential 1 zone as shown on Map “A” attached to the report of Subdivision, Agriculture & 
Environment Services, dated April 16, 2014, be considered by Council subject to the construction 
and dedication of Lochview Road. 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their 
satisfaction.  
 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Damien Burggraeve, Land Use Planner  
 
 
Reviewed by:   Shelley Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Director 
 
 
Approved for Inclusion: Doug Gilchrist, Community Planning & Real Estate Div. Director 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Proposed Subdivision Layout 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Public Notification – Letter and Summary 

 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 28, 2014 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: A14-0006 Owners: 

Adolph Hait 
Janet M. Hait 
Clarence R. Rode 

Address: 342 Valley Rd North Applicant: Brad Farrell 

Subject: 2014 07 28 Report A14-0006 342 Valley Rd  

Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve appeal A14-0006 for Lot 19, Block 5, Section 4, TWP 23, ODYD 
Plan 896 Except Plans 22059 and H8323 located at 342 Valley Road North for a subdivision of 
agricultural land in the Agricultural Land Reserve, pursuant to Section 21(2) of the Agricultural 
Land Commission Act, NOT be supported by Municipal Council; 
 
AND THAT Municipal Council forward the subject application to the Agricultural Land 
Commission.  

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a staff recommendation NOT to support an application  to the Agricultural Land 
Commission (ALC) for a “Subdivision of Agricultural Land Reserve” under Section 21(2) of the 
Agricultural Land Commission Act.  The subdivision is more specifically a “Homesite Severance” 
request as per ALC Policy #11 – Homesite Severance on ALR Lands. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

The application request is for a homesite severance, for which the owner’s qualify, in that they 
purchased the property prior to December 21, 1971. The ALC policy # 11 states: 

Persons making use of this policy should understand clearly that:  

a. no one has an automatic right to a "homesite severance";  
b. the Commission shall be the final arbiter as to whether a particular "homesite severance" meets 

good land use criteria;  

39



c. a prime concern of the Commission will always be to ensure that the "remainder" will constitute a 
suitable agricultural parcel.  (Refer to Policy #11, attached, and Section 5.3, below). 

The owner has requested a homesite of 0.32 ha (0.78 ac) subdivision that includes a number of 
structures including the existing dwelling with an attached garage and an accessory implement 
shed building (Map A, attached).  The owner’s proposed lot depth is 80 m, for the primary 
purpose of including the implement shed at the rear of the property. 

Staff notes that the 3 adjacent residential lots facing Valley Road North have a lot depth of 48 m. 
The applicant, who intends to purchase the remainder agricultural parcel, has offered the owner 
an agreement to lease the use of the implement shed back to the owner, for $1, for as long as 
the current owner has the property. 

In consideration of the above, staff have put forward an Alternative Layout, (Map B, attached) 
for the homesite, whereby the lot width is approximately 48 metres long, and will line up with 
the adjacent residential lots facing Valley Road North. With this alternative, the current owners 
would have use of the implement shed for as long as they own the property. 

One consideration of the Alternative Layout is that a septic field access and maintenance 
easement will be required on the agricultural remainder, as a septic line is present on the 
proposed agricultural parcel remainder. The owner has indicated that there is a depth of 2.4 
metres (8’) of gravel in the existing field throughout. However, in accordance with the 
recommendation of the Agricultural Advisory Committee, staff recommends that an easement 
that would allow for expansion of the septic field be planned for, should it be required. 

While the parcel does not meet the 1.0 hectare minimum parcel size for properties serviced by a 
septic system, homesite severances are the only exception available to the City which is made in 
the interests of preserving agricultural land.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description/Proposal 

The applicants are seeking a two lot subdivision for the purpose of a homesite severance.  The 
owners purchased the subject property in 1971 and therefore qualify for consideration for a 
homesite severance. 

The homesite is located in the southeast corner of the property. The remainder of the property is 
currently farmed for hay.  The remainder parcel would be 2.9 ha (7.18 ac) if the subdivision is 
permitted as proposed.  
 
The City of Kelowna holds a 0.47 ha (1.17 ac) parcel that straddles the property. This was held as 
unconstructed road right of way, but is no longer required. The potential purchaser of the 
property has had discussions with the City of Kelowna Real Estate Services with the intention of 
purchasing the parcel, for amalgamation back into the remainder, linking the two sections that 
are currently hooked. The return of unnecessary road right of way parcels such as this to 
productive farmland, was part of the initiative proposed by the City of Kelowna, as part of the 
Glenmore Recreation Park’s non-farm use application. 
 
  

40



An alternate subdivision configuration (Map B) is proposed by staff that incorporates the benefits 
as noted below.  The Alternative Layout: 
 

 matches the lot depth of the neighbouring residential properties along Valley Road North; 

 reduces the ‘edge effect’ requiring agricultural buffering in the long term; 

 makes a square corner on the farm parcel which will be easier to harvest; 

 increases the area of the farm parcel; 

 retains the farm implement shed on the farm parcel, reducing the need for additional 
structures for the farm in the future; and 

 creates a more defined line for the agricultural properties. 
 
The alternate homesite parcel configuration (Map B) includes the house and most of the 
vegetable garden, whereby the rear property line is consistent with the other residential rear 
property lines which front along Valley Road North.  With the alternate configuration, one line of 
the septic field will be on the remainder property, and an easement, complete with the ability to 
maintain the septic field as required, will be registered on the remainder parcel. 
 
In the alternate configuration, the implement shed stays with the farm remainder. Note that in 
the alternate option, the vegetation buffer will not be installed while the current owner owns 
the homesite parcel, due to the need to access the implement shed which would be leased in this 
scenario. As a condition of the subdivision, a covenant that requires the installation of a buffer to 
the Agricultural Land Commission standards will be required once the current owner no longer 
owns the homesite parcel, and the lease to the implement shed is no longer required. The buffer 
will need to go outside of the septic field easement, on the agricultural parcel. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the North Glenmore Sector of the City.  It is surrounded by 
agricultural, rural residential and park uses. The property is within the ALR.  It is outside the 
Permanent Growth Boundary according to the Official Community Plan (Figures 1 through 3, 
below). 

 

Parcel Summary: 

 Parcel Size: 3.22 ha (7.97 ac) 
 Elevation: 434 – 427 metres above sea level (masl) 
 
4.3 Zoning of Adjacent Property 

Table 1. Zoning of Adjacent Property 

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 
Agriculture / Park with 

Playing Fields 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Rural Residential 

South 
RR3 – Rural Residential / A1 - 

Agricultural 

Rural Residential / Road 
Reserve (no longer required 
for the Glenmore Bypass) 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 Agriculture 

 
  

41



Figure 1 - Subject Property  

 
 

Figure 2 – Agricultural Land Reserve 

 
 
  

ALR Subject Property 

Playing Fields 

Rural 
Residential 
 

ALR 

Rural Residential 
 Neighbouring Lots 

 

Subject Property 

City of Kelowna Road 
Reserve (not required 
for road) 

Subject Property 

Playing Fields 

Rural 
Residential 
 

Rural Residential 
 Neighbouring Lots 

 

Subject Property 

42



Figure 3 – Future Land Use 

 
 

4.4 Subdivision and Development Criteria 

For the homesite parcel (Map A, attached), the lot area would be 3200 m2, with an 80 metre 

depth and a 40 metre width. 

 

For the Alternative Layout homesite parcel (Map B, attached), the lot area would be 1900 m2, 
with a 48 metre depth and 40 metre width, which would be in alignment with the size and depth 
of the three neighbouring residents. Two of the neighbouring properties have 30 metre widths, 
and one has a 35 metre width. 

An easement would be required for the Alternative Layout to service and maintain the existing 
septic field, of which one septic line would be on the remainder parcel in the alternate homesite 
configuration. 
 
Subdivision and development criteria for the remainder Agricultural A1 zone parcel is outlined in 

Table 2, below. 

 

Table 2: Subdivision Criteria – Farm Remainder Parcel 

CRITERIA A1 (Agricultural) ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 4.0 hectare (2.0 hectare within the ALR) 

Minimum Lot Width 40.0 m 

Minimum Rear Yard 10.0 m except it is 3.0 m for accessory buildings 

Maximum Site Coverage 10% for residential development  

No variances are required for the A1 remainder parcel 

ALR Subject Property 

Playing Fields 

Rural 
Residential 
 

ALR 

Rural Residential 
 Neighbouring Lots 

 

Subject Property 

City of Kelowna Road 
Reserve (not required 
for road) 

43



 

5.0 POLICY AND REGULATION 

5.1 Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Protect and enhance local agriculture1. 

Policy 5.33.8 Subdivision.  Maximize potential for the use of farmland by not allowing the 
subdivision of agricultural land into smaller parcels (with the exception of Homesite 
Severances approved by the ALC) except where significant positive benefits to 
agriculture can be demonstrated. 

Policy 5.33.9 Housing in Agricultural Areas. Discourage residential development (both 
expansions and new developments) in areas isolated within agricultural environments 
(both ALR and non-ALR). 

Preserve productive agricultural land2. 

Policy 5.34.3 Homeplating. Locate buildings and structures, including farm help housing and 
farm retail sales area and structures, on agricultural parcels in close proximity to one 
another and where appropriate, near the existing road frontage. The goal should be to 
maximize use of existing infrastructure and reduce impacts on productive agricultural 
lands. 

5.2 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan 

ALR Application Criteria3 

Urban - Rural/Agricultural Boundary Policies4 

Homesite Severance – Continue to support the concept of homesite severance, consistent with 
Agricultural Land Commission Policy #025/78 [11]5. 
 

5.3 Agricultural Land Commission Policy #11- Homesite Severance on ALR Lands 

Persons making use of this policy should understand clearly that6:  
a. no one has an automatic right to a "homesite severance";  
b. the Commission shall be the final arbiter as to whether a particular "homesite severance" 

meets good land use criteria;  
c. a prime concern of the Commission will always be to ensure that the "remainder" will 

constitute a suitable agricultural parcel. 

4. There will be cases where the Commission considers that good land use criteria rule out any 
subdivision of the land because subdivision would compromise the agricultural integrity of the 
area, and the Commission must therefore exercise its discretion to refuse the "homesite 
severance".  

5. The remainder of the subject property after severance of the homesite must be of a size and 
configuration that will, in the Commission’s opinion, constitute a suitable agricultural parcel. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Chapter 5 – Development Process; pp. 5.33 & 5.34. 
2 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.34.  
3 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 130. 
4 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 131. 
5 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 85. 
6 Agricultural Land Commission – Policy #11 – Homesite Severance on ALR Lands (http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-
03_homesite-severance.htm)  

44

http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-03_homesite-severance.htm
http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-03_homesite-severance.htm


Where, in the Commission’s opinion, the "remainder" is of an unacceptable size or configuration 
from an agricultural perspective, there are three options: 

a) the Commission may deny the "homesite severance"; 
b) the Commission may require that the "remainder" be consolidated with an adjacent 

parcel; or 
c) the Commission may require the registration of a covenant against the title of the 

"remainder" and such a covenant may prohibit the construction of dwellings. 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

Development Engineering has no comments at this point in time with regard to this application, 
however, a comprehensive report will be provided at the time of subdivision application submission 
if the Agricultural Land Commission agrees to allow the homesite severance of the subject property 
within the Agricultural Land Reserve. (See attached Memo for potential subdivision requirements 
provided at this time for information only). 

6.2 Building and Permitting Department 

It appears that the existing accessory buildings have had work done without permit. We require 
that the Building Inspector and Plumbing & Gas inspector walk thru the property to ensure that 
all work done without permits is identified so the owner can get compliance for the property. 

6.3 Ministry of Agriculture 

The Ministry of Agriculture recommends a ‘Noise, Odour and Dust’ conservation covenant be 
placed on the homesite parcel to protect the farm remainder, as well as Level 1 fencing and a 
landscaped buffer. 

Upon discussion with the Ministry, they have agreed that, should the Alternate Layout be 
preferred by the ALC, in lieu of a fence and landscaping at subdivision, a Section 219 Restrictive 
Covenant should be put on the homesite parcel, for the fence and landscaping to be installed on 
the homesite parcel when the original owner sells the property. The line of the fence should run 
along the proposed easement for the septic field. 

6.4 Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District 

Refer to attached letter. 

6.5 Interior Health 

Refer to attached letter. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: June 19, 2014  

Agricultural Advisory Committee June 26, 2014 

The application was heard by the Agricultural Advisory Committee, for which the Alternative 
Layout was voted on, and supported unanimously. Minutes from the meeting are included below. 
 
  

45



MOVED BY Pierre Calissi/SECONDED BY Yvonne Herbison 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council support Agricultural 
Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0006 for the property located at 342 Valley Road 
North, Kelowna, BC for an application to the Agricultural Land Commission under Section 
21(2) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act for a “Subdivision of Agricultural Land 
Reserve” within the Agricultural Land Reserve to allow a homesite severance, as noted in 
Map B, on the subject property.  
 

CARRIED 
 
ANECDOTAL COMMENT: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that there needs to be a bigger easement for 
future septic field extension. It is important to have sufficient area to rebuild if the field fails.  
Support the idea of the owner having access to buildings and recommends appropriate legal 
advice be obtained to ensure continued use of the building.   

 

8.0 Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve appeal A14-0006 for Lot 19, Block 5, Section 4, TWP 23, ODYD 
Plan 896 Except Plans 22059 and H8323 located at 342 Valley Road North for a subdivision of 
agricultural land in the Agricultural Land Reserve, pursuant to Section 21(2) of the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act, Alternative Layout as per ‘Map B’ be supported by Municipal Council; 
 
AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the Agricultural 
Land Commission for consideration. 

 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion  S. Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
 

Attachments:  

Photos (3 pages) 

Subject property Map 
ALR Map  
Map A – Proposed Homesite Severence Subdivision 
Map B – Proposed Homesite Severence Subdivision – Alternate Recommendation 
Letter of Rationale – B. Farrell 
Development Engineering Branch Memo 
Response Summary – Ministry of Agriculture 
Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District (3 pages) 
Interior Health Letter 

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 7/7/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department (DB) 

Application: Z14-0017 Owners: 
Comfortcrafted Homes Inc., 
Inc. No. BC0723458 

Address: 
815 Juniper Rd (Formerly 535 
White Rd) 

Applicant: Brad Ferrell 

Subject: 
To Rezone a portion of the subject property from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to facilitate a two lot subdivision  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1- Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0017 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of portions of Lot 7, Section 23, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 
16489, located on 815 Juniper Road, from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two 

Dwelling Housing zone as shown on Map “A” attached to the report of Subdivision, 
Agriculture & Environment Department, dated July 7, 2014, be considered by Council. 
 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their 
satisfaction. 
 
  

61



Z14-0009 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose 

The applicant is requesting permission to rezone a portion of the subject property from the RU1 – 
Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to facilitate a two lot subdivision.   

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Services 

The subject property is located within the Rutland Sector of Kelowna.  It is designated as a 
S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and as such the application 
to rezone a portion of the property to RU6 to facilitate a 2 lot subdivision is in compliance with 
the designated future land use.  In addition, the OCP generally supports the densification of 
neighborhoods through appropriate infill development such as the use of two dwelling housing. 

Both proposed lots meet the zonig criteria for the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone and the RU6 – 
Two Dwelling Housing zone.  The proposed RU1 lot will be approximately 609 m2 (minimum 
required is 550m2) and the proposed RU6 lot will be approximately 716m2 (minimum required is 
700m2).  The property is serviced by the City of Kelowna sanitary sewer and Rutland Water 
Works water. 

A comprehensive “Form and Character” Development Permit will be required for the 
development of the proposed RU6 lot to ensure the dwellings are sensitively integrated in the 
existing establish neighborhood. 

Based on current City policy and services available, City staff supports this application.    

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background / Project Description 

The applicant has removed the single family dwelling that was sitting on the parent parcel and is 
in the process of building a new single family dwelling on proposed lot A as shown on the 
attached subdivision plan. 
 
The proposed RU1 – Large Lot Housing lot will be approximately 609 m2.  This lot is irregular in 
shape (reverse pie lot) with a depth of 30.6m and a width of approximately 25m at the front 
yard setback and 17.3m at the rear yard setback.  The proposed RU6-Two Dwelling Housing lot 
will be approximately 716m2 with a depth of 40m, and with of 18.1m (As shown on the attached 
subdivision plan).  The applicant is proposing to construct a duplex on the proposed RU6 – Two 
Dwelling Housing lot.    

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Rutland Sector of Kelowna (see Map 1 - Subject Property, 
below). The property is relatively flat fluctuating by less than one metre in elevation.  
 
The surrounding area is characterized by single family dwellings. 

 
Parcel Summary: 

 Parcel Size: 1324 m2 (0.57 ac) 
 Elevation: 400 masl  
 Gradient: approximately 1-2%  
 
4.4   Zoning of Adjacent Property 

Zoning for adjacent properties is outlined in the following table: 

62



Z14-0009 – Page 3 

 
 

Table 1:  Zoning of Adjacent Property 
 

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North RU6 -  Two Dwelling Housing Two Dwelling Housing 

East RU1 –  Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

South RU6 -  Two Dwelling Housing Two Dwelling Housing 

West RU1 –  Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

 

Map 1: Subject Property – 815 Juniper Rd (Formerly 535 White Rd) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject Property 

63



Z14-0009 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Technical Comments 

Table 1:   RU1 Zoning Criteria 

CRITERIA RU1 – LARGE LOT HOUSING - ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 550 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 16.5 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m (6.0 m from a garage or carport) 

Minimum Side Yard 
2.0 m (for up to 1 ½ storey portion of building) 

2.3 m (for up to 2 ½ storey portion of building) 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m (for up to 2 ½ storey portion of building) 

Maximum Site Coverage 40% (50% including driveways and parking areas) 

 
Table 1: RU6 Zoning Criteria 
 

CRITERIA RU6 – TWO DWELLING HOUSING - ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 700 m2 (800m2 for corner lot) 

Minimum Lot Width 18.0 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m (6.0 m from a garage or carport) 

Minimum Side Yard 
2.0 m (for up to 1 ½ storey portion of building) 

2.3 m (for up to 2 ½ storey portion of building) 

Minimum Rear Yard 
6.0 m (for up to 1 ½ storey portion of building) 

 7.5 m (for up to 2 ½ storey portion of building) 

Maximum Site Coverage 40% (50% including driveways and parking areas) 

 
  

64



Z14-0009 – Page 5 

 
 
 

6.0 Current Development Policies  

Current development policies that relate to the application are included in the section below. 

6.1 Kelowna 2020 – Official Community Plan - General Policies1 

Focus development to designated growth areas  

Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs per ha located within a 400 
metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) 
through development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres in particular and 
existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map. 

Ensure context sensitive housing development2 

Sensitive Infill.  Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Healthy Communities. Through current zoning regulations and development processes, foster 
healthy, inclusive communities and a diverse mix of housing forms, consistent with the 
appearance of the surrounding neighbourhood. 

7.0 Technical Comments 

7.1 Development Services 

See Attachment 

7.2 Shaw Cable / Telus 

Shaw Cable approves Rezoning Application for 815 Juniper Road.  Owner / developer to 
supply and install an underground conduit system per Shaw Cable drawings and 
specifications. 

  

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Development Process; p. 5.3 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Development Process; p. 5.27 

65



Z14-0009 – Page 6 

 
 

8.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  April 29, 2014 
Agency Comments Received:   May 30, 2014 
Public Consultation Summary Received: June 18, 2014 

 

 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Damien Burggraeve, RPP, MCIP  
 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Director, Land Use Management 
 

 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Map A – Proposed Rezoning 
Site Plan – Proposed Subdivision Layout 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Public Notification – Letter and Summary 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 7/7/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z14-0018 Owner: Mahesh Raj Tripathi  

Address: 1781 Capistrano Dr. Applicant: Steven Ulliac 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: CD-6 

Proposed Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0018 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 on 
Lot 28, Section 15, Township 23, ODYD, Plan KAP83551, located on 1781 Capistrano Drive, 
Kelowna, BC from the CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Resort to RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration.  

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the subject property to RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to allow a secondary suite. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Staff are supportive of the proposed rezoning to allow a secondary suite on the subject property 
as it is consistent with the policies and designation of the Official Community Plan (OCP). The 
Quail Ridge area was developed under a comprehensive development zone (CD6) which 
attempted to coordinate residential and commercial uses in association with a golf course. The 
CD-6 zone also applies to Tower Ranch and Gallaghers Canyon. The original purpose of the CD-6 
zone was to set up a zone which mimicked the underlying zones (RU1, RM3, RM5, C-2, C-9, P-3) 
but retained an overall density limit to match the infrastructure capacity (water and sewer). 
Quail Ridge has been built to capacity with the exception of a six lot subdivision currently being 
processed and the southernmost knoll (designed MRL and is anticipated to have 110 residential 
units). The Development Engineering Branch has stated that permitting secondary suites in single 
family dwellings would not impact the infrastructure capacity within Quail Ridge and Tower 
Ranch areas. However, the overall density limit outlined in the CD-6 zone still needs to be 

83



Z14-0016 – Page 2 

 
addressed. Any secondary suites permitted within the CD-6 zone would go beyond the density 
limit and would not be permitted unless the secondary suite owner acquired one of the allocated 
units to the southernmost MRL designated knoll. A rezoning is necessary to the RU-1 Large Lot 
Housing zone as this would remove the subject property from the overall density calculation.  

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. The neighbourhood consultation occurred on two separate dates: May 7, 2014 and 
May 26, 2014. The residents spoken with fell into 1 of 4 groups: 

1. No objection and signed the canvassing form 
2. Would not sign the canvassing form, but would not oppose during a council meeting 
3. Opposed, unsure if they would participate at council to voice their concern. 
4. Not home on both dates 

  
4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject property presently contains a vacant buildable lot. The applicant wishes to simply be 
permitted to have a secondary suite and will adhere to all the requirements within the zoning 
bylaw.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property and all the surrounding properties are zoned CD-6. The subject property is 
approximately 1,050 m2 in area.  

 

Subject Property Map: 1781 Capistrano Dr. 

 

 

84



Z14-0016 – Page 3 

 
4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Max Height 9.5 m or 2 ½ storeys Less than 9.5 m & 2 ½ stories 

Min Front Yard 4.5 m 4.5 m 

Min Side Yard (n) 2.0 m 2.0 m 

Min Side Yard (s) 2.0 m 2.0 m 

Min Rear Yard 7.5 m 30.4 m 

Max Site coverage of 
buildings  

40 % 9 % 

Max Site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
50 % <50 % 

Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 550 m2 1,050 m2 

Lot Width 16.5 m 18.4 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 54.6 m 

Other Regulations 
Min Parking Requirements 3 stalls  3 stalls 

Min Private Open Space 30 m2 / dwelling unit Greater than 30 m2  / dwelling unit 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits.  

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12).  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

85



Z14-0016 – Page 4 

 

 Provide the City of Kelowna Bulletin #88-02 (Secondary Suites Requirements in a single 
family dwelling) for minimum requirements. The drawings submitted for Building Permit 
application is to indicate the method of fire separation between the suite and the main 
dwelling.  

 Range hood above the stove and the washroom to vent separately to the exterior of the 
building. The size of the penetration for this duct thru a fire separation is restricted by 
BCBC 06, so provide size of ducts and fire separation details at time of Building Permit 
Applications.  

 The Building Code only allows for a secondary suite to be 40% of the main residence to a 
maximum of 90 sq. meters.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Engineering Department 

 See Attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. Ensure 
proper addressing off of Abbott Street. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  May 8th 2014 
Date of Public Consultation Received: May 27th 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner I  
 
 

Reviewed & Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

Attachments:  

Site Plan / Landscape Plan 
Colour Board 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Comments 
 
 
 

 

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 15, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LG) 

Application: Z14-0024 Owner: Interior Health Authority 

Address: 505 Doyle Avenue Applicant: 
David Roche (Bentall 
Kennedy) 

Title: Rezoning Application 

Existing Zone: 
C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 
C7 - Central Business Commercial 

Proposed Zone: C7 - Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0024 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of a portion of Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD Plan EPP25652, 
located at 505 Doyle Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the C4 – Urban Centre Commercial zone to the 
C7 - Central Business Commercial zone, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the Urban 
Planning Department dated July 11, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch, as attached to the Report of the Urban 
Planning Department dated July 15, 2014, being completed to its satisfaction; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Ministry of Transportation, as attached to the Report of the Urban Planning 
Department dated July 15, 2014, being completed to its satisfaction; 

AND THAT the property owner be required to register a Section 219 No-Build Covenant on the 
title to the subject property; 

AND FURTHER THAT the Section 219 No-Build Covenant be discharged upon approval of a 
Development Permit application for the subject property; 

 

 

 

93



Z14-0024 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose 

To amend the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 to remove the C4 zone from the subject parcel and add the 
C7 zone to the entire parcel. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning supports the proposed rezoning for the subject parcel. When the site was 
consolidated in Spring 2013, it maintained the existing zones from each parcel and this current 
application is required simply to establish a single consistent land use zone for the parcel. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

This rezoning application is related to Interior Health Authority’s proposed Kelowna Community 
Health and Services Centre office development. 

4.2 Project Description 

Rezoning 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the portion of the site that is currently C4 to C7 in order to 
establish one land use zone on site. The intent of the C7 zone is to allow for the development of 
the financial, retail and entertainment, governmental and cultural core of the downtown. The C7 
zone allows for higher density and building height than the C4 zone which is appropriate for the 
downtown core. 

Office Building 

The proposed development affiliated with this application is a five storey office building. A 
development variance permit (DVP) application with project details will be brought forward to 
Council for consideration should the bylaw associated with this application receive 3rd reading 
and the applicant fulfils the outstanding technical conditions. 

4.3 Public Consultation 

As per Council Policy No. 367, the applicant is only required to consult with their neighbours 
within a 50m radius. However, in anticipation of their DVP application, the applicant hosted a 
Public Information Session. 

The session was held on Wednesday, July 9, 2014 from 4pm – 7pm at the Laurel Packinghouse. In 
preparation for the session, the applicant contacted the neighbouring owners and tenants 
through three avenues: 

1. Registered mail to the legal owners of the neighbouring parcels of land; 

2. Emails and phone calls to those for whom they had contact information, specifically 

a. The owner of 1405 St. Paul Street. 

b. The owner of 1420 St. Paul Street. 

c. The strata council president of The Madison at 1395 Ellis Street; and 

d. The owner/developer of The Monaco site at St. Paul and Ellis. 

3. Hand delivery to all businesses within the 50m radius. 

94



Z14-0024 – Page 3 

 
 

Approximately 20 people attended the public information session (not including representatives 
from the City, IHA or the development team). 

Comments noted during the event, and provided on comment cards, were generally positive and 
supportive of the project. The most commonly repeated or shared comments were: 

 General support of the design, scale, and massing of the building 

 Concern over the lack of parking in the general area – however, not specifically with 
respect to the building 

 Concern over traffic in the general area – however, not specifically with respect to the 
building 

 Concern that the security around the building and control of those who come to the 
building to use its services is handled carefully to avoid street level issues 

 Street level animation through retail uses, carefully treated elevations and points of entry 
to the building. 

4.4 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the southeast corner of Doyle Avenue and Ellis Street. 
Neighbouring the site is The Madison and location of the approved development permit for The 
Monaco to the north, Memorial Arena to the west, and commercial uses to the east and south. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C7 – Central Business Commercial 
MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / 
Commercial) 

West 
P1 – Major Institutional, C7 – Central 
Business Commercial 

EDINST – Educational / Institutional 

East C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 
MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / 
Commercial) 

South 
C4 – Urban Centre Commercial, C7 – Central 
Business Commercial 

MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / 
Commercial) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

95



Z14-0024 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 505 Doyle Avenue 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C7 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 200m2 4701m2 

Min. Lot Width 6.0m 96.74m 

Min. Lot Depth 30.0m 48.76m 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Downtown Development.2 Support rezoning to C7 use in the downtown Urban Centre area only 
where properties are surrounded on a minimum of 3 sides by existing C7 zoning. The intent of 
this policy is to support intensification within the existing core areas of Downtown. 

Retention of Commercial Land.3 In order to ensure that the City’s commercial land supply is not 
eroded, where the OCP Bylaw 10500 indicated a commercial land use designation for the 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.4 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.24.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

96



Z14-0024 – Page 5 

 
 

property, the expectation would be that there be no net loss of commercial space on the site as 
a result of the redevelopment to include other uses. 

Office Building Location.4 Encourage office buildings providing more than 929 m2 of useable 
space to locate in the City Centre or the Town Centres. This policy does not include offices 
integral to business park / industrial uses and “corporate offices” allowable under relevant 
industrial zones. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

 Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on site. 
The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit application.  

 A Hoarding permit is required and protection of the public from the staging area and the 
new building area during construction. Location of the staging area and location of any 
cranes should be established at time of DP. 

 A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 

o Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in the code 
analysis by the architect. 

o Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and should be 
reflected in the plans if required.  

o The code analysis is also to address the interconnected floor space per the 
prescriptive requirements of the code or an alternative solution needs to be accepted 
by the Chief Building Inspector in lieu 

 A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage at 
time of building permit application. We strongly recommend that the developer have his 
professional consultants review and prepare solutions for potential impact of this 
development on adjacent properties. Any damage to adjacent properties is a civil action 
which does not involve the city directly. The items of potential damage claims by 
adjacent properties are items like settlement of foundations (preload), damage to the 
structure during construction, additional snow drift on neighbour roofs, excessive noise 
from mechanical units, vibration damage during foundation preparation work etc. 

6.2 Bylaw Services 

 No comments received. 

6.3 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum dated June 9, 2014. 

 

 

                                                      
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.25.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

97



Z14-0024 – Page 6 

 
 

6.4 Fire Department 

 Construction fire safety plan is required to be submitted and reviewed prior to 
construction and updated as required.   

 A visible address must be posted as per City of Kelowna By-Laws.  

 Sprinkler drawings are to be submitted to the Fire Dept. for review when available. 
Ensure that isolation valves are at an acceptable level as per the COK Bylaw 10760. 

 A fire safety plan as per section 2.8 BCFC is required at occupancy. The fire safety plan 
and floor plans are to be submitted for approval in AutoCAD Drawing format on a CD or 
DVD to facilitate Fire Department pre-planning for this structure. The fire safety plan 
should clearly detail the unique requirements for this structure. A copy of the sprinkler 
system owner’s certificate is to be included in the fire safety plan.  

 Fire Department access is to be met as per BCBC 3.2.5.6  

 Fire Department steel lock box or key tube acceptable to the fire dept. is required by the 
fire dept. entrance. Kurt’s Lock & Safe at 100A – 1021 Ellis Street, Kelowna is the 
approved supplier for flush mount lock boxes.  

 The standpipes connections are to be installed on the transitional landings of the 
stairwells as per NFPA 14.  

 Fire Stairwells to be marked clearly (including roof access) as per Fire Department 
requirements. This would be standardized and approved by the Kelowna Fire Department 
(KFD).  

 All requirements of the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 10760 shall be met.  

 Fire alarm system is to be monitored by an agency meeting the CAN/ULC S562 Standard.  

 Contact Fire Prevention Branch for fire extinguisher requirements and placement.  

 Fire department connection is to be within 45M of a fire hydrant – please ensure this is 
possible and that the FD connection is clearly marked and visible from the street. 

6.5 FortisBC – Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities both on and offsite which provide service to the 
neighbourhood including the downtown business district as well as the cultural district.  
FortisBC Inc. is currently working with the City of Kelowna and the Interior Health 
Authority towards the relocation of both on and offsite facilities to accommodate this 
development.  The applicant is responsible for costs associated with any change to the 
existing service and servicing the proposed development, as well as the provision of 
appropriate land rights where required. 

Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no concerns with this circulation. 

6.6 Infrastructure Planning 

 Applicant to provide more detail on the streetscape planting and paving and to work with 
Infrastructure Planning in the selection of plant material, paving material and site 
furniture. 

98



Z14-0024 – Page 7 

 
 

 Street trees to match what has been planted across Doyle Avenue. 

6.7 Ministry of Transportation 

 See attached email dated July 16, 2014. 

6.8 Telus 

 Telus will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required 
to supply and install conduit as per Telus policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

 
Date of Application Received: May 8, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Map “A” 
Conceptual Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Ministry of Transportation Email 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 15, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z10-0044 Owner: Nathan Morden 

Address: 120 Homer Road Applicant: Nathan Morden 

Subject: 2014 07 28 Extension Report Z10-0044 120 Homer Rd 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Amending Bylaw No. 10403 (Z10-0044) to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning 
Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 13 Section 27 Township 26 ODYD Plan 
14897, except Plan 39705, located at 120 Homer Road, Kelowna BC, be extended to August 12th 
2014. 

2.0 Purpose  

To extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10403 from June 20, 2014 to August 
12, 2014.  

3.0 Background 

An addition to the original dwelling was approved through a Building Permit issued in 2005, which 
added approximately 2600ft2 of floor area.  The property has an open Bylaw Enforcement file 
regarding illegal dwelling units. 

The property is currently zoned RU1 – Large Lot Housing, however, there are three illegal units in 
the single-family dwelling.  The original dwelling has a three-bedroom unit located in the 
basement.  The addition approved in 2005 allowed for a three-car garage with living space 
behind and above, however, these additional spaces have been converted into a one-bedroom 
and a three-bedroom unit respectively.  In total, the property contains four separate dwelling 
units.  The property was sold to a new owner in 2011-2012 who has been attempting to resolve 
the outstanding legal issues ever since. 

 

 

113



Z10-0044 – Page 2 

 
 

3.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Hwy 33 W near Gerstmar Road and west of 
the Rutland Urban Centre boundary.  Specifically, the adjacent zones and uses are:  

 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Housing 

East RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Townhomes 

South 
RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing 
C1 – Local Commercial 

Apartment 
Complex 
Gas Bar 

West P2 – Educational & Major Institutional Religious Assembly 

 
4.3 Site Location Map 

Subject property: 120 Homer Road 

 
 

4.0 Urban Planning 

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in 
writing that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

Subject Property 

114



Z10-0044 – Page 3 

 
 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a 
meeting of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that 
Amendment application. 

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the 
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of 
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect. 
 
By-Law No. 10403 received second and third readings on September 21st, 2010 after the Public 
Hearing held on the same date. In a report dated October 5th, 2012, Staff noted that any further 
extension requests would not be supported as this application was originally generated through a 
Bylaw Enforcement action and prolonged non-compliance would not be permitted.  However, last 
year the applicant began to pay the required fees (BMID water fees) in order to move the 
application forward. Staff then recommended a further 12 month extension to March 21, 2014. 
 
Staff recommended a further two month extension to June 20, 2014 in order for the applicant to 
complete the remaining condition (Building Permit Application and Code Compliance Report). 
The applicant had numerous discussions with the building department regarding the value of 
building code compliance work and the outstanding illegal work. The applicant and the building 
department were able to come to an agreement which completed the final conditions on June 
19th 2014.  
  
The applicant paid their outstanding development engineering fees on April 9, 2014. A 
Development Variance Permit, required to legalize the existing building footprint, had been 
placed on hold until the zoning conditions were met. It may now be considered by Council.  
 
If the extension request is denied by Council, Staff will then bring forward a rescinding bylaw to 
Council as soon as possible. However, Staff supports the extension. 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

 

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



Date: 

 

July 23, 2014 
 

File: 
 

0165-30  

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Deputy City Manager 

Subject: 
 

Quarterly Report Update 

 Report Prepared by: Summer Effray, Marketing & Communications Advisor 

 

Recommendation: 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Quarterly Report from the Deputy City Manager, 
dated July 23, 2014. 
 
Purpose:  
To provide Council with an update of the City’s activities for the second quarter of 2014. 
 
Background: 
The attached PowerPoint presentation provides a brief summary of some key activities 
undertaken in the last quarter by the corporation.   
 
The content of the presentation continues to evolve and staff welcomes Council’s suggestions 
in ensuring the report is both informative and timely for our community. All contributors and 
contributing departments are not expected to attend the Council presentation, however if 
Council has specific questions that require a staff member attend the meeting, it is requested 
that the City Clerk be advised in advance of the meeting. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Presentation distributed to Divisional Directors. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
 
Submitted by: 
  
 
Paul Macklem, Deputy City Manager 

122



Q U ART E R LY  R E P O RT  
Quarter 2 – July 2014 

123



G R O W  O U R  E C O N O M Y  

Creative City Summit 

Winning host city 

Oct. 27-29, 2015 

110+ municipalities 

cultural policy, planning & 

service delivery 

124



G R O W  O U R  E C O N O M Y  

Highest construction value* since 2010 

170 permits for single-family 

408 development applications 

71 rural and 87 urban planning 
applications 

152 new lots approved 

International Showcase of Best Practices 

2012 2013 2014 

Building 
Permits 

2nd quarter 
YTD 

$128.98m $153.73m $159.52m* 

125



G R O W  O U R  E C O N O M Y  

Kelowna International Airport (YLW) 

Daily service added: 

Fort McMurray 

San Francisco 

Passenger numbers 

Month 2013 2014 Difference 
(%) 

April 111,346 122,064 9.63 

May 113,976 121,418 6.53 

June 117,104 124,274 6.12 
126



E N H A N C E  C I T I Z E N S ’  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  

Get connected 
kelowna.ca 

418,400+ visits 

e-Subscribe 
20,000+ 
subscribers 

Instagram  
400+ followers 

Facebook 
1,820+ fans 

Twitter 
9,630+ fans 

 
127



E N H A N C E  C I T I Z E N S ’  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  

Kelowna Fire Department 
MASAS deployed 

West Kelowna flooding 
support 

New McKinley fire truck 

Calgary Fire Chief 
presentation 

2013 Q2 2014 Q2 

Kelowna Responses 2,454 2,283 

Fire related 

responses 
446 402 

128



E N H A N C E  C I T I Z E N S ’  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  

Central Okanagan Emergency Operations 

on social media 

Facebook: facebook.com/CORDemergency 

Twitter: @CO_Emerg  

 

129



E N H A N C E  C I T I Z E N S ’  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  

Active transportation 
BC Transit workshop 

Bike Rodeos 

Bike to Work Week 

Environmental conservation 
316 Adopt-a-stream volunteer 
hours 

88 Yellow Fish Road drains 
painted 

350 NeighbourWoods trees bought 

1,500 seedling planted 

1 more Okanagan Car Share 
(OGO) car 

130



E N H A N C E  C I T I Z E N S ’  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  

Strong neighbourhood project 

Hockey Night in Canada’s Play on! 

Inaugural Cherry Blossom Triathlon 

30+ outdoor events 

Wibit in City Park 

City-lead events 

Pandosy Waterfront 

131



F O C U S  O N  R E S U LT S  

Project-related community engagement 
In person 

344 face-to-face 

144 feedback forms/surveys 

Online 
Social media  

Get involved.kelowna.ca 

Public Engagement Program 

Gold Quill Award of Excellence 

132



F O C U S  O N  R E S U LT S  

Service Requests 
Top 5 this quarter 

1. Parking – General 
Violation  

2. Park Issue  

3. Street Sweeping  

4. Unsightly Premise 

5. Trees – Public 

Public requests 2013 2014 

Q1 4,127 3,881 

Q2 5,641 5,839 

133



D E L I V E R  O N  O U R  P L A N  

Bernard Ave. revitalized 

Apex Trail restoration 

Lakeshore Road bridge 

Queensway improvements 

 

134



D E L I V E R  O N  O U R  P L A N  

Our Rutland 

New landfill entrance 

Hospital Area Plan 

South Pandosy Parking 

Management Plan 

Water System Asset 

Management Plan 

135



P R O A C T I V E  &  P R A G M AT I C  L E A D E R S H I P  

Award for Financial Reporting 

2013 Annual Report online at 
kelowna.ca/annualreport 

Five-year Financial Plan 
adopted 

2.49% tax rate set 

52,000 tax notices 
50%+ taxes collected by June 20 

9,700+ payments at cashiers 

Launched property tax e-updates 

136

http://kelowna.ca/annualreport
http://kelowna.ca/annualreport


2 0 1 4  S E C O N D  Q U A RT E R  R E P O RT  

For other ways to get connected with 

the City, visit kelowna.ca/connect 

137

http://kelowna.ca/connect


Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
7/28/2014 
 

File: 
 

1220-02 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Urban Planning Manager (AW) 

Subject: 
 

552-554 Leon Avenue - Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement 

 Report Prepared by: Alec Warrender 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council approves the City of Kelowna entering into Revitalization Tax Exemption 
Agreement with 0871089 B.C. LTD., INC.NO. BC0871089 for Lot A District Lot 139 ODYD Plan 
34415, located on 552-554 Leon Avenue, Kelowna BC, in the form attached to the report from 
Land Use Management dated July 28th, 2014; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Revitalization Tax 
Exemption Agreement 
 
Purpose:  
 
The applicant is applying to enter into a Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement in 
accordance with Revitalization Tax Exemption Program Bylaw No. 9561. 
 
Background: 
 
The subject property is designated as Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) in the OCP and as 
such the proposed 5 storey commercial development is in compliance and was approved by 
Council.  
 
A Development Permit for the project was recently approved by Council under DP11-0144. 
The property contained a single family dwelling for a number of years, which is not the 
highest and best use of this Urban Centre location. Staff considers the redevelopment of 
Urban Centre properties to a higher and better use a positive step towards achieving the 
livability goals established in the 2030 OCP. Aided by the Revitalization Tax Exemption 
Agreement, the proposed redevelopment of an underutilized property will further support 
revitalization of the Downtown Urban Centre. 
 
As the project is located within Revitalization Tax Exemption Area 2 of the Downtown Urban 
Centre it qualifies for a tax exemption equal to 50% of the municipal portion of property tax 

138



calculated in relation to the increase in assessed value of improvements on the property 
resulting from the construction or alterations outlined in DP11-0144. In any case this shall not 
be more than the incremental increase in the assessed value of improvements on the Parcel 
between the year before the commencement of construction of the Project, and the year 
following the issuance of the Tax Exemption Certificate (and not exempt from any local 
service tax). The Tax exemption will be valid for the years of 2016-2025. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Revenue Manager, Financial Services 
 
 
Existing Policy: 
Revitalization Tax Exemption Program Bylaw No. 9561 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
The As the project is located within Revitalization Tax Exemption Area 2 of the Downtown 
Urban Centre it qualifies for a tax exemption equal to 50% Revitalization Tax Exemption. The 
Tax exemption will be for the 2016-2025 taxation years 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 

Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 

 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
R. Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 DG - Community Planning & Real Estate Divisional Director 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
 
 
cc: Matt Friesen, Revenue Branch 
 

  

139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
7/28/2014 
 

File: 
 

1220-02 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Urban Planning Manager (AW) 

Subject: 
 

1155 Brookside Avenue - Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement 

 Report Prepared by: Alec Warrender 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council approves the City of Kelowna entering into Revitalization Tax Exemption 
Agreement with Evergreen Lands Limited, Inc. No. BC0382754 for Lot A Section 19 Township 
26 ODYD Plan EPP31674, located at 1155 Brookside Avenue Kelowna BC, in the form attached 
to the report from Land Use Management dated July 28th, 2014; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Revitalization Tax 
Exemption Agreement 
 
Purpose:  
 
The applicant is applying to enter into a Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement in 
accordance with Revitalization Tax Exemption Program Bylaw No. 9561. 
 
Background: 
 
The subject property is designated as Multiple Unit Residential - low density in the OCP and as 
such the proposed 72 unit purposed built rental townhouse project is in compliance and was 
approved by Council. The applicant has already entered into a Housing Agreement to secure 
the units for a period of 10 years to guarantee the retention of the rental units. 
 
A Development Permit for the project was recently approved by Council under DP12-0212. 
The subject property has recently been consolidated but had had been used for single family 
housing for a number of years. Staff considers the redevelopment of this nature within the 
urban centre a positive step towards achieving the livability goals as established in the 2030 
OCP. The proposal as submitted also meets the intent of the 2030 OCP Design Guidelines. The 
project is centrally located and has convenient access to transit and various amenities. The 
project will provide newer rental apartment housing stock.  
 

150



As the project is a purpose built rental development, the rental project qualifies for a tax 
exemption equal to 100% of the municipal portion of property tax calculated in relation to the 
increase in assessed value of improvements on the property resulting from the construction or 
alterations outlined in DP12-0212. In any case this shall not be more than the incremental 
increase in the assessed value of improvements on the Parcel between the year before the 
commencement of construction of the Project, and the year following the issuance of the Tax 
Exemption Certificate (and not exempt from any local service tax). The Tax exemption will be 
valid for the years of 2016-2025. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Revenue Manager, Financial Services 
 
 
Existing Policy: 
Revitalization Tax Exemption Program Bylaw No. 9561 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
The rental housing project qualifies for the 100% Revitalization Tax Exemption given that the 
vacancy rate is less than 3% for 2014. The Tax exemption will be for the 2016-2025 taxation 
years 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 

Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 

 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
R. Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 DG - Community Planning & Real Estate Divisional Director 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
 
 
cc: Matt Friesen, Revenue Branch 
 

  

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
7/28/2014 
 

File: 
 

1890-90 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Manager, Utilities Planning 

Subject: 
 

Fascieux Creek Restoration Improvements 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives for information, the report from the Utilities Planning Manager, dated 
July 28th, 2014 with respect to Fascieux Creek Restoration; 
 
AND THAT the following fees be waived for the Green Parent Committee for the purposes of 
restoring a portion of Fascieux Creek: 

1. Development permit application fee 
2. 60 cubic metres of Ogo compost 
3. Landfill tipping fees for up to 1,650 cubic metres of material 

 
Purpose:  
 
To provide in kind assistance to the Green Parent Committee and School District 23 in order 
to restore habitat over a portion of Fascieux Creek in front of the KLO Middle school. The City 
of Kelowna will obtain a right of way over Fascieux Creek in exchange for this assistance. 
 
Background: 
Staff have been working with the KLO Middle School Green Parent Committee in order to 
improve the habitat along a portion of Fascieux Creek fronting a portion of the KLO Middle 
School.  The Green Parent Committee is volunteer group who has obtained $80,000 in grant 
funding in order to remove an existing culvert and restore the Creek similar to a 
predevelopment condition.  The volunteer group has been largely made up of members from 
the Parent Advisory Committee and Teachers from the KLO Middle School. 
 
In exchange for the City’s in kind donation, the School District Board has resolved at the 
February 26, 2014 Board meeting: 
 
THAT staff be directed to work with the City of Kelowna to develop a Statutory Right of Way 
for the redevelopment creek bed 

 
The City needs to obtain right of ways in order to maintain creek channels and to protect the 
public from flood risks.  The portion of Fascieux Creek that fronts the KLO Middle School is 
owned by School District 23 and does not reside within Crown Lands.  The City will survey and 

161



register a Statutory Right Away over the restored lands once the restoration project is 
complete. 
 
With the in kind donations from the City, the Green Parent Committee will have all of the 
funds in place necessary to restore approximately 150 metres of Fascieux Creek, phase 1, 
Schedule A.  Should Council agree to the in kind donation, it is expected that the phase one 
of the project will be completed prior to September 30, 2014. 
 
Financial Budget/ Considerations: 
The aforementioned waiver of fees is only expected to reduce potential revenue as follows.  
Any costs for providing the in kind donations are expected to be very minor: 
 

 The development permit fee for works along a creek is valued at $1000 
 

 60 cubic metres of Ogo compost is valued at $983 
 
The 1,650 cubic meters of material requested for disposal at the landfill will be primarily 
made up soil and 100 cubic meters of concrete culvert.  We currently receive clean fill for 
free at the landfill as we use this material for landfill cover.  We charge $25 per metric tonne 
for concrete. 100 cubic meters of material has an approximate value of $3,600. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Kevin Van Vliet, Utilities Services Manager  
Todd Cashin, Subdivision, Agriculture, and Environmental Services Manager 
Darryl Astofooroff, Public Works Manager 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
A. Reeder, Manager of Utilities Services     
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                     John Vos, Infrastructure Divisional Director 
 
 
Attachments:  Schedule A 
 
cc: Public Works Manager 
 Subdivision, Agriculture, and Environmental Services Manager 
 Utilities Services Manager  
 

  

162



Schedule A 
 

Existing Fascieux Creek – Subject Area 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Proposed Fascieux Creek Restoration: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phase 1 of Restoration 

163



 
 

164



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
7/21/2014 
 

File: 
 

5600-14 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Kevin Van Vliet, Utility Services Manager 

Subject: 
 

SEKID Boundary Inclusion for 4050 Casorso Road 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 

THAT Council approve the request by the South East Kelowna Irrigation District (SEKID) to 
amend its water service area boundaries to include 4050 Casorso Road as outlined in the report 
of the Utility Services Manager dated July 21, 2014 
 
Purpose:  
 
To respond to a request for boundary modification by the South East Kelowna Irrigation 
District 
 
Background: 
 

The South East Kelowna Irrigation District (SEKID) has received a petition for the inclusion of 
lands within their boundary as follows: 
 

 Lands legally described Township 26 Section 5, S/W quarter; - 4050 Casorso Road; 
Roman Catholic Bishop of Nelson.   

 

The lands in question fall within the SEKIDS overall water service supply area.  A copy of the 
request and petition is attached to this report. 

Council approval is required for all district boundary amendments to meet the requirements of 
the Ministry of Community Services which oversees the SEKID. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

165



 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Internal Circulation 
Legal/Statutory Authority 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
Existing Policy 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations 
Personnel Implications 
External Agency/Public Comments 
Communications Comments 
Alternate Recommendation 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
Kevin Van Vliet, Utility Services Manager 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 
 
 
Attachments: 
Request from South East Kelowna Irrigation District 
 
cc: Infrastructure Planning  
 

  

166



167



168



169



170



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
July 28, 2014 
 

Rim No. 
 

0505-35 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

James Moore, Long Range Policy Planning Manager 

Subject: 
 

2014-07-28 Report - Rescind Ownership Housing Agreements 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council, receives for information, the report from the Policy and Planning Department, 
dated July 28, 2014 with respect to rescinding all existing ownership Housing Agreements 
Authorization Bylaws; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No. 10873, being a Bylaw to Rescind Housing Agreement 
Authorization Bylaw Nos. 9525, 9694, 9713, 9737, 9834, 9884, 10182, 10183 and 10601, be 
forwarded for reading consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council directs staff to proceed with the discharge of the housing 
agreements from the title of the properties identified in Bylaws 9525, 9694, 9713, 9737, 9834, 
9884, 10182, 01083 and 10601. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To direct staff to rescind all existing ownership Housing Agreements. 
 
Background: 

Housing agreements secure commitments from developers to provide affordable housing that 
has been offered through the application approval processes. Housing agreements are built on 
the premise of a “win-win” arrangement – a developer gains the ability to build more units on 
a site than would otherwise be possible and in return, the city obtains affordable housing.  
 
The City has several types of housing agreements:  
 

1. Rental agreements  

  affordable rental, 

  purpose built, & 

  affordable rental in an owner/stratified building;  
2. Affordable owner agreements that provide for affordable rental or owner dwellings;  

(the subject of this report) 

171



3. Special needs housing agreements;   
4. Agreements for non-market1/subsidized housing;  
5. An agreement for families with members in health care (respite housing); and  
6. A seniors’ housing agreement.  

 
The above-noted housing agreements were all approved by Council (by by-law) and 
subsequently signed off by the developer/owner and the City.   
 
Ownership Housing Agreements: 

Starting in 2005, ownership housing agreements were put in place to secure a few affordable 
dwellings within a building in return for an increase in density or in exchange for support for 
an OCP amendment to facilitate an up-zoning. Currently there are ten active ownership 
Housing Agreements with a total of 38 affordable units, including 3 units that were never 
constructed. 
 
Ownership Housing Agreements set a maximum price at which a property can be sold in order 
to preserve the affordability of the housing unit for a particular class of purchasers.  
 
In 2005, the Kelowna homebuyer’s market did not offer much choice for households with a 
combined income at or below the median income level for a Kelowna family. Historically, 
there was Council direction that affordable homes guaranteed by housing agreements should 
remain as a housing resource for as long as possible, particularly given the fact that they were 
originally secured as a developer’s commitment to generate some affordable housing in 
return for increased density. In 2012, Council decided that no new ownership housing 
agreements would be executed; however, existing ownership housing agreements would 
continue to be administered.   

Since then, the market has shifted and it is not difficult to find a re-sale stratified dwelling at 
or below the City’s starter home price of $209,902.  In the past two years, three requests 
from property owners to amend their ownership housing agreement to allow rentals have 
been approved by Council. Moreover, in the past couple of years a number of other issues and 
areas of concern for City staff, developers and housing occupants with regards to ownership 
housing agreements have arisen:  
 

 Administration and monitoring issues with respect to documenting qualified buyers and 
confirming owner occupancy outweigh the benefits; 

 The federal and provincial government agencies, including BC Housing and Canada 
Mortgage and Housing have presented considerable resistance to ownership housing 
agreements due to the fact that they affect the title of the property; 

 Not all owners and developers are receptive to the agreements.  Many see them as a 
barrier to selling dwellings; 

 The housing market has shifted nearly 180o since 2006 (e.g.:  ownership supply has 
increased for homes below the City’s starter home price); and 

 Owners and developers sometimes see the agreements as infringing on their property 
and housing market rights.  

 

                                                           
1
 Non-market housing receives subsidies in order to reach the housing needs of lower income households, while 

market housing is built by the private sector without significant government subsidies. 

172



While the affordable ownership units served their purpose a few years ago when the average 
cost for a stratified dwelling was far above the City’s starter home price, the three rental 
modification requests from property owners have indicated that no longer seems to be the 
case and that there is no longer a business case for the ownership housing agreements.  
 
As a property owner for a unit with an existing ownership Housing Agreement, the repeal of 
the Housing Agreement Bylaws will: 
 

 Remove the requirement to sell the unit at the maximum Affordable Starter 
Home Price. The maximum Affordable Starter Home Price for 2013: 
 

$222,434 (non-strata titled, single ownership dwelling)                      
$209,902 (strata titled dwelling)  

                $200,336 (manufactured home with pad rental, additional) 
 

 Remove the Ownership Affordability requirement. 
 

Ownership affordability: the income level at which home ownership is 
possible (based on the median income level). The median income for a 
two or more person Kelowna household is $66,843 (2013) - updated 
annually using the BC Consumer Price Index. 

 
The recommendation to eliminate agreements applies only to ownership housing. It is 
suggested that the three types of rental agreements (affordable rental, purpose built, & 
affordable rental in an owner/stratified building), special needs housing agreements, non-
market/subsidized housing agreements, the agreement for families with members in health 
care (respite housing) and the one agreement for seniors’ housing be retained. 
 
Staff are recommending that the bylaws for all ownership agreements, including the three 
ownership agreements that now allow rentals, be rescinded and the agreements be 
discharged from the respective titles. 
 
Next Steps: 
 
The owners of 695 Webster Road (Bylaw 10163) are pursuing their own bylaw repeal process 
due to time constraints regarding the pending sale of the housing units. 
 
The cost to discharge the ownership housing agreement from the title of the specified units is 
$29.10 per discharge.  Given that the owners of 695 Webster Road are taking care of their 7 
units to discharge, which leaves 31 units for the City to process.  The cost for those 31 units 
would be approximately $902. 
 
The ownership housing agreements did not always specify which units were encumbered by 
the agreement. In those cases the agreement was registered against the parent parcel and 
when the property was strata-titled, the housing agreement was subsequently registered on 
all the units in the project, not just the required units.  The additional cost to discharge the 
housing agreements on those additional units would be approximately $6400.00 at $29.10 per 
unit. 
 
  

173



Given that those units were never supposed to be encumbered the City would not enforce the 
agreement. Staff are not recommending that the City take on the responsibility for 
discharging the agreements from those units, however we have no objection should individual 
property owners seek to discharge the agreement from their titles if necessary.   
 
It will be necessary to have the owners of the specified units sign a release form to allow the 
City to discharge the housing agreements.  It will take time to confirm the current property 
owners via a title search, send them a letter and the release form to return with a signature 
before staff can process the discharge through the Land Titles office. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
 
Divisional Director – Community Planning & Real Estate 
City Clerk 
Urban Planning Manager 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
 
Local Government Act Section 905: 

A housing agreement under section 905 of the Local Government Act (LGA) is the only 
tool available to the City to ensure that affordable housing commitments are kept.  
Under Section 905(2) of the LGA: “A housing agreement may include terms and 
conditions agreed to by the local government and the owner regarding the occupancy 
of the housing units identified in the agreement…” 

 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
 
Bylaw 10873 can be given 3 readings and could be adopted (4th reading) at the subsequent 
Council meeting. This process would not require a Public Hearing.    
 
External Agency/Public Comments 
 
The City has previously sent letters to all the specific unit property owners to ascertain their 
opinion on the potential to rescind the ownership housing agreements. There was very limited 
response, but of the few that did respond, they were supportive of the proposed bylaw 
rescission.  It is seems highly unlikely that any of the property owners would object. 
 
Existing Policy: 
 
Official Community Plan  
 
Objective 5.9 - Support the creation of affordable and safe rental, non-market and/or special 
needs housing. 
 
  

174



Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
Administrative costs associated with ownership housing agreements relate primarily to staff 
time (see “Personnel Implications”) and legal expenses.  
 
At present, significant changes to housing agreements can generate up to $5,000 in legal fees.  
A minor legal review of an agreement is approximately $200 - $300, based on filed 
information. This cost is not recovered from the applicant. 
 
Personnel Implications: 
 
Housing agreements can require significant staff time due to administrative complexities and 
change requests. Complexities happen when the property owner wants changes to housing 
agreements and legal consultation is involved.  These situations can take months to resolve 
and many hours of staff time in the three different departments (Urban Planning, Policy and 
Planning and City Clerk’s Office). 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Communications Comments 
Alternate Recommendation 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
James Moore, Long Range Policy Planning Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion: 
 
Danielle Noble-Brandt, Department Manager, Policy and Planning 
 
cc:  Divisional Director – Community Planning & Real Estate 

City Clerk 
Urban Planning Manager 

  

175



176



177



1 
 

Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
July 28, 2014 
 

File: 
 

0705-61 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Sandra Kochan, Cultural Services Manager and 
Lorna Gunn, Grants and Partnerships Manager 

Subject: 
 

Amendment of Sister Cities Policy 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives for information the report dated July 28, 2014 from the Cultural 
Services Manager and the Grants and Partnerships Manager recommending revisions to Council 
Policy 355 pertaining to Sister City relationships; 
 
AND THAT Council Policy No. 355, being Sister City Funding, be revised as outlined in the 
report from the Cultural Services Manager and the Grants and Partnerships Manager dated 
July 28, 2014; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Cultural Services Manager is authorized to execute Sponsor 
Agreements with the Kelowna Kasugai Sister City Association and the Kelowna Veendam Sister 
City Association pursuant to revised Policy 355. 
 
Purpose:  
To seek Council approval of revisions to Policy 355 pertaining to Sister City relationships. 
 
Background: 
Early in 2012, Council directed staff to ‘develop a Sister City Council Policy that includes 
options for types of relationships and criteria for evaluating sister city requests.’ 
 
Since that time, staff have: 

a) Informed Council about the status of sister city relationships between the City of 
Kelowna and Kasugai (Japan), Veendam (The Netherlands) and District of Senanga 
(Zambia); 

b) Received direction from Council to end the relationship with the District of Senanga; 
c) Conducted research into approaches used by other jurisdictions to create and manage 

sister city relationships including: 
Sister City International 
City of Abbotsford 
City of Calgary 
City of Minneapolis 

178



2 
 

City of London 
d) Briefed Council on possible policy options; and 
e) Reviewed policy options with the local Kasugai and Veendam Sister City organizations. 

 
Staff recommend that existing Policy 355 being ‘Sister City Funding’ be revised. The proposed 
revised policy is attached as Appendix A. 
 
Policy revisions address the following: 

 They provide basic principles and criteria to assess whether a new Sister City 
relationship will be beneficial. The principles reflect the multi-faceted nature of Sister 
City relationships, and the criteria assist in assessment of Sister City proposals. Not all 
relationships or exchanges between communities will meet the Sister City criteria. 
Some types of relationships may, for example, be best handled through academic or 
economic development linkages rather than a sister city relationship which assumes a 
more holistic range of connection. The formation of new Sister City relationships 
pursuant to the revised policy will likely be quite rare and would be warranted only 
when there are multiple, rather than single, opportunities for genuine exchange and 
benefit. 

 Even though each Sister City relationship has its own unique history and character, the 
policy creates a consistent framework within which these relationships function. 

 The policy provides an objective, transparent process for the establishment of a Sister 
City relationship. Citizens wishing to bring forward ideas for Sister City relationships 
will benefit from clear information about the proposal process and the information 
required to obtain Council approval. 

 Communications and accountability between the City and local Sister City 
organizations will be improved through more clarity about roles and responsibilities. 
Improved reporting will mean that more and better information about the benefits and 
impact of Sister City relationships will be shared with the community. 

 Staff liaison through Cultural Services will assist Sister City organizations in building 
more connections with the cultural community and fostering unique opportunities such 
as this year’s Asian Heritage Month performance by the Okanagan Symphony featuring 
musicians from Kasugai. 

 
Internal Circulation: 
Director, Active Living & Culture 
Advisor, Community Communications 
City Clerk 
 
Existing Policy: 
Council Policy 355 – Sister City Funding 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Two separate base budget allocations have been provided through Council contingency to 
support Sister City activities: 

a) Through current Policy 355, operating support of $2,500 annually with carryovers – 
used for expenses related to hosting Sister City delegations when they come to 
Kelowna, and to purchase gifts to be given by Kelowna delegations when they visit 
sister cities. The Policy specifically provides that these funds will not be used for any 
travel expenses; and 

179



3 
 

b) Also through current Policy 355, grant expense of $7,500 annually – originally intended 
to be equally divided between the Kasugai, Veendam and Senanga organizations. 
These funds were to be matched by the organizations, and used to support their 
administrative functions and projects. 
 

The revised policy provides for a continuation of these funding arrangements with an option 
for any Sister City organization to apply for a larger Arts, Culture & Heritage grant in any 
given year. 
 
If a larger grant is awarded, the organization may forego its base budget allocation for that 
year if the purpose of the grant funding duplicates the purpose of base budget support. In this 
event the organization would be eligible to have base budget support reinstated in the 
following year. 
 
Access to an increased grant may enable special arts, culture and heritage initiatives such as 
exhibitions, performances or artist exchanges which may not be possible within current base 
budget funding. 
 
The current base budget allocation includes $2,500 annually to support a Sister City 
relationship with the District of Senanga (Zambia). This relationship has been discontinued. 
Staff recommend that the $2,500 remain within the base budget allocation for Sister Cities in 
order to support: 

- Any new Sister City relationships which may be approved by Council pursuant to the 
revised policy; or 

- If recommended by Cultural Services and approved by Council, additional support for 
special initiatives of the Kasugai or Veendam Sister City organizations. 
Recommendations will be based on the nature of the initiative, the proposed use of 
the funds, demonstrated matching of the funds through other sources and financial 
need. 

 
Personnel Implications: 
Currently the Grants and Partnerships Manager is the liaison with local sister city 
organizations and Council appointees. 
 
Upon approval of the revised Sister City Policy, responsibility for the Policy and liaison will 
move to the Cultural Services Branch. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
Communications Comments: Alternate Recommendation 
External Agency/Public Comments 
 
Submitted by:  
S. Kochan, Cultural Services Manager and L. Gunn, Grants & Partnerships Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 Jim Gabriel, Director, Active Living & Culture 
 
 

  

180



4 
 

cc: Director, Active Living & Culture 
Advisor, Community Communications 
City Clerk 

181



POLICY 355 

 

Council Policy 
Sister Cities 

APPROVED 

@ 

 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4   
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

Contact Department: Cultural Services 

   

Policy Statement 

The City of Kelowna will consider the establishment of Sister City relationships with other municipalities that have potential 

benefits to the City of Kelowna and the broader community through cultural, educational, recreational and economic 

activities and opportunities. 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines within which Sister City relationships with other municipalities may be established 

and maintained. A Sister City relationship is intentionally created by two or more city governments through a formal agreement. 

 

Background 

Sister City relationships between communities can foster a range of cultural, educational, recreational and economic benefits and 

opportunities. Council may, through application of the criteria and procedures in this policy, receive, review and decline or approve 

proposals for the establishment of new Sister City relationships. The policy also provides for management of the relationships once 

established, through liaison, reporting and Sponsorship Agreements with local organizations primarily responsible for Sister City 

activities. The policy recognizes current Sister City relationships with Kasugai (Japan) and Veendam (The Netherlands), provides for 

continuing support of their activities, and specifies how the new policy will apply to them. 

 

Definitions 

Sponsor organization:   A local organization that will manage the Sister City relationship.  The organization must be based 

in the City of Kelowna and either designated as a non-profit society or have a fiscal agency that meets the same criteria. 

Sister City:  A city that has entered into a formal relationship with the City of Kelowna through a Sister City  Agreement. 

Sister City Committee: A Committee of the sponsor organization organized to manage the Sister City relationship. 

Sister City Agreement:  A memorandum of understanding between Kelowna and another city outlining the terms of the 

Sister City relationship. 

Sponsor Agreement:  A memorandum of understanding between the City of Kelowna and a sponsor organization outlining the 

requirements for managing the Sister City relationships. 

 

Procedure 

The “Sister City” model is based on community to community relationships.  These relationships will be built on the 

following principles: 

Similarity – there are identifiable similarities or mutual interest between the City of Kelowna and the proposed 

Sister City. 

Exchange – there is potential for cultural, educational, recreational and/or economic exchange. 

Reciprocity – As a Sister City there are reciprocal benefits and opportunities for both parties to develop 

relationships through cultural, educational, recreational and economic activities. 

APPENDIX A –July 28, 2014 Report to Council re: Amendment of Sister Cities Policy 

182



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 355 Page 2 of 6 

Community driven – there is active leadership, involvement and support by the community, through an existing 

organization or business, to both establish and maintain the relationship. 

Strategic Benefit – the short-term and long-term benefits of the relationship outweigh the public costs of entering 

into or maintaining the relationship. 

Exclusivity & Proximity – the City of Kelowna does not have a Sister City relationship with any other municipality 

in the same country or within close proximity of a proposed Sister City location  

Stability – the country in which the Sister City is situated has a stable political climate as determined by the 

Department of Foreign Affairs and International Trade (DFAIT). http://travel.gc.ca/news-warnings/warnings 

 

a. Criteria 

1. Sister City relationships may only be established by resolution of Council of the City of Kelowna. Council has the 

discretion to accept or reject proposals and its decision will be final. 

2. City Council may also consider the number of existing Sister City relationships already in place and may determine at 

any time that no further Sister City relationships will be established. 

3. The following criteria will be applied in reviewing a proposal to establish a Sister City relationship: 

 The proposed relationship reflects the principles of similarity, exchange, reciprocity, strategic benefit, exclusivity 

and stability expressed in this policy 

 There is active leadership, involvement and support by the community in the proposed Sister City  

 There is a lead sponsoring organization in each City which has the capacity to fulfill the responsibilities within the 

Sister City relationship including: 

o Provision of regular committee meeting minutes and annual work plans, budgets and reports to municipal 

officials. 

o Representation at official and community events and celebrations. 

o Facilitation of exchange visits between the two cities at least once every 5 years. 

o Provision of volunteer and financial resources to support the relationship. 

o Establishment of an active working Committee which is inclusive and reflective of its host community and 

has provided for ongoing recruitment. 

 

b. The Proposal Process 

4. Prior to initial consideration by Council the Sponsor Organization must submit to the Cultural Services Branch of the 

City of Kelowna a detailed written proposal including the following information: 

 Name of Municipality and Country of the proposed Sister City; 

 Demographic profile of the proposed Sister City; 

 Description of the short and long term benefits to both cities including identifiable similarities and mutual interest; 

 Summary of the Sponsor Organization’s activities to date; 

 A three-year work plan projected from the date of City Council preliminary approval, including arrangements for 

formalizing the relationship; 

 Budget for the work plan with identified funding sources including a detailed fundraising plan to ensure that the 

Sponsor Organization is financially self-sufficient; 

 Description of the proposed Sister City’s expectations for the relationship with Kelowna; 

 Letters of commitment from members of the Sponsor Organization supporting the intent to become active 

members of the Sister City Committee; 

 List of at least 10 Kelowna residents interested in becoming members of the Sponsor Organization indicating 

their intention to participate in the sister city relationship.  The list will include address, phone number and e-mail 

address for each person; 

 If the request is coming from outside Kelowna to Mayor and Council then a letter of invitation is required from the 

Mayor of the proposed sister city and the Sponsor Organization; and 

 Letters of collaboration from businesses, educational institutions or other parties. 

183

http://travel.gc.ca/news-warnings/warnings


CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 355 Page 3 of 6 

5. Upon receipt of a proposal, City staff will review the proposal against the principles and criteria in this policy and 

provide recommendations to City Council. 

 

c. Establishment Process 

6. If the Sister City relationship has been recommended by Cultural Services staff and given approval to proceed by City 

Council, the following actions will be taken: 

a) The proponent will be notified in writing; 

b) A formal letter of interest will be forwarded from the Mayor of Kelowna to the Mayor of the proposed Sister City;  

c) A Sister City Agreement is developed with the Sister City for an initial term of three (3) years with provision for 

renewal; and 

d) A Sponsor Agreement is developed with the Sponsor Organization in Kelowna for an initial term of three (3) 

years with provision for renewal (sample attached). Based on the proposal, staff recommendations and Council 

direction, the Sponsor Agreement may or may not provide for financial support from the City for the Sponsor 

Organization’s sister city activities. 

7. The final agreements will be presented to Council to formally establish the Sister City relationship and a formal 

signing ceremony is arranged by City staff. 

8. All Sister City relationships, including new relationships approved pursuant to this Policy, and relationships in 

existence at the time this Policy is approved, may benefit from ongoing base budget allocated specifically for 

expenses associated with: 

a) Kelowna hosting visiting delegations from Sister Cities; and 

b) Purchase of gifts to be given by City of Kelowna Council members when visiting Sister City hosts. 

This budget is not to be used for travel expenses. Expenditures from this budget must be approved by Council. 

9. At least 6 months prior to the expiry of the initial three (3) year term, an assessment will be undertaken by Cultural 

Services staff and representatives from the Sponsor Organization to determine whether the goals and objectives of 

the relationship have been met. If the assessment is favourable and all parties wish to continue the relationship, the 

Sponsor Organization will provide a formal request for renewal, specifying its preferred renewal period, supported by 

a workplan for the renewal period. 

10. If the assessment is unfavourable or if Council deems it necessary for any reason, the Sister City relationship may be 

ended at the expiry of the initial three (3) year term upon direction from City Council. In this event, all privileges and 

obligations associated with the Sponsor Agreement and the Sister City Agreement will be at an end. 

 

d. Application of this Policy to existing Sister City relationships 

11. The Kelowna Kasugai Sister City Association (KKSCA) and the Kelowna Veendam Sister City Association (KVSCA) 

may continue to submit an annual letter of request to the City for allocated ongoing base budget provided that: 

a) The request is received no later than December 1 of the year preceding the budget year; 

b) The request is supported by financial statements and any other documentation requested by the City, 

demonstrating that the Association has raised sufficient funds to match or exceed the amount of funding 

requested from the City; and 

c) If the request for base budget exceeds $2,500, Council approval is required and will be based on the proposed 

use of the funds, demonstrated matching of the funds through other sources, and financial need. 

12. For 2015 and all subsequent budget years, any Sister City Association wishing to obtain funding from the City of 

Kelowna exceeding the allocated ongoing base budget will be required to submit an application for funding through a 

City of Kelowna grant program. In order to be eligible for application-based grants, the applicant must meet the 

criteria in the program guidelines, which may include a requirement to forego base budget funding in the year of the 

application. 

13. Sections 6(d), 8 and 9 of this Policy will apply to the KKSCA and the KVSCA effective upon adoption of this Policy, 

and both Associations will be required to enter into a Sponsor Agreement. 

Amendments 

R944/10/10/04 

 

184



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 355 Page 4 of 6 

  

185



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 355 Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

 

This agreement dated (insert) 

 

Sponsor Agreement 

between 

City of Kelowna (The City) 

1435 Water Street, Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4 

Attention: Cultural Services Manager 

and 

(sponsor organization) (The Sponsor) 

(address) 

Attention: (name) 

Whereas: 

The Sponsor has submitted a proposal to the City for the establishment of a Sister City relationship with (city) pursuant to 
Council Policy 355 (Sister City Policy); and 

The City has, by Council resolution xxx on (date) approved the establishment of a Sister City relationship with (city) (the Sister 
City); 

This agreement sets out the roles and responsibilities of the City and the Sponsor in fulfilling the objectives of the Sister City 
Policy and the Sister City relationship with (city). 

1. The term of this agreement will be three (3) years commencing (date) and ending (date). 
 

2. This Agreement may be renewed for an additional period of up to five (5) years, pursuant to the Sister City Policy. 
 

3. This Agreement can be amended at any time by written agreement of the City and the Sponsor. 
 

4. The Sponsor, as the lead organization responsible for the Sister City relationship, will fulfill the role of ambassador of 
international goodwill for the benefit of the City by: 
a) creating cultural, educational, recreational and economic programs and activities which develop and promote 

interest in the Sister City and benefit the City of Kelowna;  
b) assisting City officials when meeting with their counterparts from the Sister City and organizing local cross-cultural 

events; 
c) providing representation at official and community events and celebrations; 
d) facilitating and fundraising for exchange visits between the City and the Sister City at least once every three (3) 

years; 
e) providing volunteer and financial resources to support and fund the Sister City relationship; 
f) responding to requests for information regarding the Sister City and the activities within the Sister City 

relationship; and 
g) establishing an active working Committee which is inclusive and reflective of the City of Kelowna and which has 

provided for ongoing recruitment. 
 

5. The Sponsor will, in administering the Sister City relationship: 
a) provide documentation to the City verifying that the Sponsor is a registered British Columbia Society in good 

financial standing and that it has the authority, by resolution of its directors, to enter into this agreement; 
b) demonstrate proof of insurance, satisfactory to the City; 

THIS AGREEMENT IS USED PURSUANT 

TO SISTER CITY POLICY 355 

186



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 355 Page 6 of 6 

c) abide by all applicable by-laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations of any governmental agency having 
jurisdiction over the activities of the Sponsor; 

d) not assign or transfer any interest in this agreement or the Sister City relationship without the prior written 
consent of the City; 

e) not alter its Constitution and/or Bylaws without prior approval of the City, such approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld; 

f) indemnify and hold harmless the City and its personnel from all actions, proceedings, losses, expenses, and costs 
arising out of, or in any way connected with the Sponsor’s activities, any breach or default by the Sponsor under 
this agreement, or any wrongful act, omission, or negligence of the Sponsor; 

g) seek approval from the City prior to issuing any communication with the public, including any media organization, 
with regard to the Sister City relationship; 

h) acknowledge the financial assistance of the City of Kelowna on all communications and promotional materials 
relating to the Sister City relationship, such as programmes, brochures, posters, advertisements, websites, news 
releases and signs; and 

i) provide regular reports and requested information to the City of Kelowna in a prescribed format including 
Committee meeting minutes and annual work plans, budgets and reports to City of Kelowna Council and Cultural 
Services staff. 
 

6. The City will: 
a) receive an annual report from the Sponsor as Public in Attendance at a regular council meeting; 
b) in discussion with the Sponsor, complete an annual review of the Sponsor’s annual work plans, budgets, reports 

and information to identify particular achievements and possible areas for improvement in the fulfillment of the 
Sponsor Agreement; and 

c) provide annual matching funding to the Sponsor in accordance with Council Policy 355 (attached); and 
d) in accordance with Council Policy 355, the City may consider an annual grant application from the Sponsor such 

application(s) to be adjudicated in accordance with the program guidelines. Grants are awarded on an annual 
basis, based on the merits of the application and the program criteria. Applicants must re-apply each year. 
Continued funding is not guaranteed. Depending on the nature of the application and the program guidelines, 
application-based grant funding may be in addition to, or an alternative to, the annual matching funding specified 
above in section 6(c). 
 

7. If the Sponsor violates or fails to comply with any provisions of this agreement, the City may provide fair notice to the 
Sponsor of default. If the default is not rectified to the City’s satisfaction within the time specified in the City’s notice, 
city staff will recommend to City Council that this agreement be terminated. 
  

8. In the event that this agreement expires at the end of the term and is not renewed, or is terminated by the City prior to 
the end of the term, the City may: 
a) Seek a new Sponsor to support the Sister City relationship; or  
b) Terminate the Sister City Relationship with (city). 

 

We agree to the terms and conditions outlined in this Agreement. 

 

 

____________________________________________________      

On behalf of the Sponsor Organization     Date 

Print Name: 

 

 

__________________________________________________________     

On behalf of the City of Kelowna      Date 

Print Name: 

187



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
July 23, 2014  
 

Rim No. 
 

0610 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Louise Roberts, Community & Neighbourhood Services Manager  

Subject: 
 

Service Collaboration Between the City of Kelowna and Allied Health 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the Community & Neighbourhood 
Services Manager dated July 23, 2014, regarding the expanded service collaboration between 
the City of Kelowna and Allied Health. 
  
Purpose:  
 
To provide Council with an overview of the expanded collaboration between the City and 
Allied Health that will further bridge the connection between health care and community 
programming. The focus of this collaboration is to support individuals’ self management of 
their health. 
 
Background: 
 
For the past few years health authorities and recreation providers, nationally and 
provincially, have been focusing their attention on exploring ways to collaborate on issues 
related to health, particularly chronic disease prevention and management.  
 
In the fall of 2013 the City and Allied Health began delivering a collaborative pilot program, 
“Breathe Well Respiratory Exercise Program”.  This program is designed especially for people 
with mild Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) and other respiratory conditions. 
The “Breathe Well Respiratory Exercise Program”, which is delivered out of the Parkinson 
Recreation Centre, provides individuals with onsite supervision (1 day per week) by a 
physiotherapist provided by Allied Health, plus access to the facility to exercise on their own, 
outside of the time when the physiotherapist is present. To participate in the program 
individuals are required to purchase a 6 month facility pass and register for the program 
through the City of Kelowna.  
 

188



The intent of the program is to encourage individual’s self management of their health 
condition and provide them with the support they needed to bridge the gap between acute 
care services and community services.  
 
2014 Expanded Services 
 
Based on the success of this program model, Allied Health and the City began to explore how 
to expand this service model to other target groups. The expanded collaboration focused on 
the development of 5 streams of health programs (respiratory, orthopedic, neurologic, frail 
elderly, cardiac) and the provision of a liaison therapist situated at Parkinson Recreation 
Centre to connect individuals with City programs and services.  
 
Active Living & Culture’s 2014 fall “Health Programming” will reflect this new direction.  

 Existing health programs have been reviewed and modified with the support of Allied 
Health staff and are now identified under the “Move For Your Health” section in our 
Program and Activity Guide. 

 Programs offered will support the identified streams. 

 Nine different ‘Move for Your Health’ programs will be offered out of three City 
facilities, which equates to approximately 26 classes per week.  

 An Allied Health staff that will function as a liaison therapist will be situated 1.5 to 
2.5 hours per day, Monday through Friday, out of Parkinson Recreation Centre to act 
as a navigator. They will meet one-on-one with the general public and assist them in 
connecting to the appropriate City programs and services.  

 This free service will be promoted by Allied Health as part of their clients’ care plans 
but it will also be accessible to any member of the public. 

 A prescription for exercise has been created in conjunction with the local Division of 
Family Practice that will direct patients to these programs and service.  

 
Through the development of this initiative key roles and responsibilities include:  

 Allied Health will provide staff, at no cost to the City, whose role will include: 
 bridging the gap between acute care services and community services  
 promoting individuals’ participation in community programs and services  
 supporting individuals’  placement and retention in community services   
 supporting the City’s health programming; development, planning, quality 

control and consultations 

 City will provided space, at no cost to Allied Health, for their staff to meet with the 
public and will coordinate the delivery of the community based health programs.  

 
A key component that contributed to the feasibility of this initiative was the specialized 
training City fitness instructors received over the past three years through grant funding from 
the Interior Health Authority.  This funding also provided the resources needed for the 
development and delivery of several pilot health programs. These pilot programs are the 
foundation on which the “Move for Your Health” programs have been built. 
 
The benefits to the community from this collaboration are: 

 Increase services that support sustained behavior changes to improve and maintain 
individuals’ health 

 Increase community capacity to support individuals’ ability to self manage their health 

 Increase ability for individuals to self manage their health at a community level   

189



 Increase awareness of City programs, services and facilities  

 Decrease burden on acute care services  
 
This initiative leverages services in an innovative way to achieve each organizations objective 
and meet community needs. The collaboration focuses on enhancing citizens’ quality of life 
by addressing a need for community level programs and services that support individuals’ 
ability to self manage their health.  
 
Internal Circulation: 
Director, Active Living & Culture; Communication Advisor 
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Staff has worked directly with representatives from Allied Health and the Division of Family 
Practice regarding this collaboration and agreement.  
 
Communications Comments:   
A news release in cooperation with Allied Health will be created to inform the public about 
the benefits of this collaboration and this information will also be featured on our website.  
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
L. Roberts, Community & Neighbourhood Services Manager  
 
 
Approved for inclusion:  Jim Gabriel, Divisional Director, Active Living & Culture  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. PowerPoint presentation 
2. Health Section of the Fall 2014 Program & Activity Guide  

 
 
Cc:  Divisional Director, Communications & Information Services  

190



250 469-8800 kelowna.ca/recreation

P
R

IC
E

S
 S

u
B

JE
C

T
 T

o
 C

H
A

n
G

E

4747HEALTH	PROGRAMS

Health	Programs
Arthritis	Society-Self	Management	Program
Instructor:	Arthritis	Society
Location:	Rutland	Activity	Centre,	Multi-Purpose	Room
The Arthritis Self-Management Program which was developed at 
Stanford university is designed to give you the tools and knowledge 
you need to take control of your arthritis and/or fibromyalgia. offering 
training and practical advice, this research-based program enhances 
your understanding of arthritis and empowers you to take a more 
active role in managing it. This free six week program is delivered by 
the Arthritis Society, BC and Yukon Division trained instructors. There 
is	 however	 a	 $25	 fee	 for	 the	 program	 resource	 material	 ‘Arthritis	
Helpbook’ which participants will receive at the first class. Bursaries 
are available for those with limited incomes through the Arthritis 
Society to cover the cost of the resource material.
Age:	16Y	and	up
138065	 M	 1:00	PM-3:00	PM	 Oct	27-Dec	1	 Fee:	$25

Chronic	Pain	Management	Workshop
Instructor:	Arthritis	Society	Facilitators
Location:	Rutland	Activity	Centre,	Multi-Purpose	Room
The Chronic Pain Management Workshop will improve your knowledge 
of pain management, introduce different methods of handling pain 
and will encourage you to take an active role in reducing the impact 
of	arthritis	on	your	life.	You	will	learn	techniques	to	deal	with	joint	and	
muscle pain, and how to manage stress and fatigue. This free two hour 
workshop is delivered by the Arthritis Society, BC and Yukon Division 
trained instructors.
Age:	18Y	and	up
138031	 M	 1:00	PM-3:00	PM	 Oct	20	 Fee:	$0

Move	for	Your	Health
These	programs	were	developed	 in	conjunction	with	the	 Interior	Health	
Authority. Programs are led by certified fitness instructors who have 
completed additional training such as “osteofit”, “Get up and Go!”, “Keep 
on Moving” and “Arthritis Fitness.“Move for Your Health” exercise programs 
are designed for individuals with or at risk of chronic health conditions as 
well as the general public. All of the programs are structured to provide a 
safe exercise option as they adhere to the following guidelines:
•	 Offers	a	minimum	30	minute	class	with	appropriate	warm	up	and	

cool down
•	 Includes	a	variety	of	 fitness	components	 including	cardiovascular,	

strength, flexibility, balance, agility and coordination
•	 Provides	multiple	methods	to	monitor	intensity	during	exercise	and	

encourages daily aerobic exercise
•	 Has	a	documented	emergency	plan	with	telephone	access	to	EMS
•	 Has	the	availability	of	an	AED	with	appropriate	instructor	training

Breathe	Well	Respiratory	Exercise	Program
Instructor:	Simone	Manfredi
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	Weightroom
This fitness class is designed especially for people with mild CoPD 
and other respiratory conditions. People with moderate to severe 
CoPD should attend KGH rehab program prior to enrolling in this class. 
This 6 week program will include supervision one day per week by a 
physiotherapist plus unlimited access to gym facilities to exercise on 
your own. Please check with your doctor before registering for this 
program. A health history form will be given to all registrants and must 
be completed and brought to the first session.	Participants	must	have	a	
Facility	Access	Pass	or	general	six	month	Facility	Pass. no class nov 11.
***There will be a three and six month check-in scheduled.
Age:	19Y	and	up
138543	 Tu	 2:00	PM-2:45	PM	 Sep	2-Dec	16	 Fee:	$0

Fitness	Maintenance	Program
Instructor:	Logan	Garland
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	Weightroom
This program is an opportunity for any individuals who are looking for 
a supervised environment to participate in moderate levels of physical 
activity. Class is for people with chronic illness such as arthritis, 
heart disease, inflammation, dementia etc, but is also good for the 
general population. Focuses on cardio, strength, flexibility, balance 
and functional fitness, helps with movements that are used in daily 
activities such as sitting, standing, reaching and bending. For greatest 
benefits participants should register for twice a week. no class oct 13.
Age:	19Y	and	up
138541	 M	 1:00	PM-2:00	PM	 Sep	15-Dec	1	 Fee:	$51.70
138542	 Th	 1:00	PM-2:00	PM	 Sep	18-Dec	4	 Fee:	$56.40

Functional Fitness
Instructor:	Nikki	Blanleil
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	Orchard	Room
This class is designed to meet the needs of participants who may be new 
to formal exercise, want a gentle balanced workout, those returning 
to exercise post rehab following surgery or other medical event. 
Functional fitness exercise programs focus on strength, endurance, 
balance and flexibility to improve activities of daily living. Individuals 
with chronic illnesses will benefit from this program as well as the 
general population. Conditions that may benefit from these classes 
include	 joint	 replacement;	 deconditioning	 related	 to	medical	 illness;	
neurological	 events	 such	 as	mild	 stroke	or	 head	 injury;	 neurological	
diagnosis. Please speak to you physician should you have any concerns 
about your suitability for a program.
Age:	15Y	and	up
139029	 F	 12:00	PM-1:00	PM	 Sep	5-Nov	14	 Fee:	$60.50
139030	 W	 4:30	PM-5:30	PM	 Sep	10-Nov	12	 Fee:	$55
139031	 Th	 3:30	PM-4:30	PM	 Sep	11-Oct	30	 Fee:	$44
139032	 Th	 3:30	PM-4:30	PM	 Nov	6-Dec	11	 Fee:	$33

Strength	&	Flexibility
This class is suitable for individuals with arthritis, those recovering 
from	 injury	or	 illness,	as	well	as	 the	general	population.	Classes	will	
be self-paced and participants may exercise while seated in a chair 
and/or standing with a chair to provide support as needed. Conditions 
that	 may	 benefit	 from	 these	 classes	 include	 joint	 replacement	 and	
deconditioning related to medical illness. Please speak to you physician 
should you have any concerns about your suitability for a program.
Age:	18Y	and	up
Instructor:	Kami	Johnson
Location:	Okanagan	Mission	Activity	Centre
137876	 W	 2:30	PM-3:30	PM	 Sep	10-Oct	29	 Fee:	$44
137877	 W	 2:30	PM-3:30	PM	 Nov	5-Dec	17	 Fee:	$38.50
Instructor:	Tracy	Taylor
Location:	Rutland	Activity	Centre,	Multi	Purpose	Room/Meeting	
Room 1
139040	 W	 11:30	AM-12:30	PM	 Sep	24-Nov	26	 Fee:	$55
Instructor:	TBA
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	MacIntosh	Room
139096	 M	 3:15	PM-4:15	PM	 Sep	8-Nov	24	 Fee:	$66
139098	 Tu	 3:45	PM-4:45	PM	 Sep	23-Nov	25	 Fee:	$55
139099	 W	 3:15	PM-4:15	PM	 Sep	10-Nov	26	 Fee:	$66
139097	 Th	 3:15	PM-4:15	PM	 Sep	18-Nov	20	 Fee:	$55

191



48

kelowna.ca/recreation 250 469-8800

HEALTH PRoGRAMS

SENIORS

The City of Kelowna, Active Living & Culture is pleased to be able to assist with the delivery of service to seniors in the Kelowna area 
through its’ Service Delivery Agreements with the three Societies. These agreements provide the Societies access to three municipal 
recreation facilities from which they can offer a wide variety of recreational and educational programs to enhance their quality of life.

The Active Living Guide for Older Adults is available with a complete list of activities and programs offered at all three Centres, as well 
as community information pertaining to the older adult.

The Active Living Guide for older Adults also available online. Go to kelowna.ca/recreation and scroll down to Senior Services.

Active	Living	for the  
  Older	Adult

Get	up	&	Go!
Get up and Go! Provides an entry level exercise program for seniors at 
high risk of falls, those with balance and mobility impairments, those 
using	mobility	aids	(canes,	walkers,	and	wheelchairs).	Taught	by	fitness	
leaders who are certified in osteofit and Get up & Go! The program is 
designed specifically for people with osteoporosis and low bone density 
who have been inactive and are looking for an introductory exercise 
program. It is a safe exercise program specially designed to improve 
balance and coordination as well as functional ability, independence 
and quality of life. This inclusive class is suitable for people who 
have broken their hip or other bones. This program is appropriate for 
participants with Parkinson’s Disease, Multiple Sclerosis, Arthritis 
and	joint	pain	and	inflammation	as	well	as	the	general	population.	No	
Seniors discount. no class oct 13.
Age:	40Y	and	up
Instructor:	Kami	Johnson
Location:	Okanagan	Mission	Activity	Centre
137878	 M	 3:15	PM-4:15	PM	 Sep	8-Oct	27	 Fee:	$38.50
137879	 M	 3:15	PM-4:15	PM	 Nov	3-Dec	15	 Fee:	$38.50
Instructor:	TBA
Location:	Parkinson	Activity	Centre,	Main	Hall
138840	 W,	F	 3:30	PM-4:30	PM	 Sep	10-Oct	3	 Fee:	$44
138999	 W,	F	 3:30	PM-4:30	PM	 Oct	8-31	 Fee:	$44
139070	 W,	F	 3:30	PM-4:30	PM	 Nov	5-28	 Fee:	$44
Instructor:	Tracy	Taylor
Location:	Rutland	Activity	Centre,	Multi	Purpose	Room/Meeting	
Room 1
138844	 W,	F	 10:15	AM-11:15	AM	 Sep	24-Oct	24	 Fee:	$55
139017	 W,	F	 10:15	AM-11:15	AM	 Oct	29-Nov	28	 Fee:	$55
Instructor:	TBA
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	MacIntosh	Room
139066	 M	 11:45	AM-12:45	PM	 Sep	15-Dec	1	 Fee:	$60.50
139067	 Th	 11:45	AM-12:45	PM	 Sep	18-Nov	27	 Fee:	$60.50

Aqua	Arthritis Aqua Arthritis is a pool-based, recreational program for people with 
arthritis. The buoyancy of the water can help decrease pain and or 
stiffness	 and	 help	 maintain	 or	 improve	 joint	 flexibility.	 This	 class	
focuses	 on	 relieving	 stiffness,	 restoring	 or	 maintaining	 joint	 range	
of motion and muscle strength, improving posture and increasing 
endurance to perform daily tasks. Additional benefits of this class are 
improved coordination, balance and general well being. Classes are led 
by fitness professionals who are certified by the Arthritis Society as 
Aqua Arthritis instructors.
138567	 W	 1:15	PM-1:45	PM	 Sep	10-Oct	22	 Fee:	$23.63
138568	 W	 1:15	PM-1:45	PM	 Oct	29-Dec	10	 Fee:	$23.63

Osteofit
Instructor:	TBA
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	MacIntosh	Room
Research shows that exercise helps to build your muscles, improve 
your mobility and balance and reduces your risk of falls and fractures. 
oSTEoFIT has been designed specifically for people with osteoporosis 
and low bone density who have been inactive and are looking for 
an introductory exercise program. oSTEoFIT is safe for individuals 
who have had spinal fractures or who have broken their hip or other 
bones.	 It	 is	 safe	and	gentle	enough	not	 to	cause	pain	or	 injury	even	
if you are unused to exercise. Taught by fitness leaders who are 
certified in osteofit. This program is appropriate for participants with 
osteoporosis, Parkinson’s Disease as well as the general population.
Age:	19Y	and	up
139051	 Tu,	Th	 10:30	AM-11:30	AM	 Oct	7-Nov	27	 Fee:	$82.50

Minds	in	Motion
Instructor:	Nikki	Blanleil
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	MacIntosh	Room
Minds in Motion is designed for people diagnosed Alzheimer’s 
Disease	or	another	dementia	and	their	caregiver.	Enjoy	light	exercise	
conducted by a certified fitness instructor, followed by activities or 
games and social time in a relaxed atmosphere. Light refreshments 
will be provided. In partnership with Alzheimer Society of B.C. note: 
Fitness portion is 45 minutes. Fee is per couple. no class oct 13.                                                                                                                          
Age:	15Y	and	up
138564	 M	 1:00	PM-3:00	PM	 Sep	8-Oct	27	 Fee:	$35
138565	 M	 1:00	PM-3:00	PM	 Nov	3-Dec	15	 Fee:	$35

Aqua
Location:	Parkinson	Recreation	Centre,	Pool
This class is based on the “Move for your Health” fitness model and 
will focus on maintaining and enhancing mobility. Comprised of easy 
gentle movement such as shallow water walking, strength sets using 
water resistance followed by gentle stretching.
Age:	14Y	and	up
138569	 M	 1:15	PM-2:00	PM	 Sep	8-Oct	20	 Fee:	$30.38
138570	 F	 1:15	PM-2:00	PM	 Sep	12-Oct	24	 Fee:	$35.44
138571	 M	 1:15	PM-2:00	PM	 Oct	27-Dec	8	 Fee:	$35.44
138572	 F	 1:15	PM-2:00	PM	 Oct	31-Dec	12	 Fee:	$35.44

Senior	Centre	Locations:
Parkinson	Senior	Centre	Society, 
1700 Parkinson Way, Phone: 250 762-4108
Rutland	Senior	Centre	Society, 
765 Dodd Road, Phone: 250 765-3723
Okanagan	Mission	Senior	Centre	Society, 
4398 Hobson Road, Phone: 250 764-7642

192



S E R V I C E  C O L L A B O R A T I O N   
Between the City of Kelowna and Allied Health  

193



 
 

A new approach  
to health.  

Innovative Solutions  
for Meeting Community Needs  

194



Pa t i e n t  F l o w,  T h r o u g h  I H A  P h y s i o t h e r a p y   

1. KGH: post op or serious event. 
2. Home Care: for those that need treatment 

in their home. 
3. Outpatient Dept. for those that need hands 

on treatment, but can get out of their 
home. 

4. Community based programs: Progress 
people towards this category as soon as is 
appropriate, as ‘health care” becomes 
health.  

195



B r e a t h e  We l l   
R e s p i ra t o r y  E x e r c i s e  P r o g ra m   

 

•2013 Pilot program 

•Designed for mild COPD & other 

respiratory conditions 

•Physiotherapist on-site  

•Bridge gap between acute care 

service and community services  

196



P r o g r a m s  &  S e r v i c e s  t h a t  s u p p o r t  

i n d i v i d u a l s ’  s e l f  m a n a g e m e n t  o f  t h e i r  h e a l t h   

2014 Expanded Services  

197



A l l i ed  Hea l th  L i a i son  Therap i s t s  
 
Bridging the gap 
between acute care 
services and community 
services 
Supporting and 
promoting participation 
in community services 

 
198



Act  a s  Nav i ga to r s   
 

Available to the public: 
 

Monday & Tuesday & Friday 
9-10:30 AM 

 
Wednesday  
2:30-4 PM 

 
Thursday  

12:30-2 PM 

199



Ways  to  Acces s  Th i s  F ree  Serv i ce   

•care plan 

•directed by physician 

•just show up   

200



“Move  For  Your  Hea l th”  
P rog rams  

9 programs - 3 locations - 26 classes /week  

201



Benef i t s  to  the Community   

Increased services & 
support  
Increased ability for 
individuals to manage 
their health  

202



A Collaboration Focused on Enhancing 
Citizens’ Quality of Life. 

Providing programs & services  
that support individuals’ ability to self manage 

their health. 
203



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
7/21/2014 
 

File: 
 

1840-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Terry Barton, Parks and Building Planning Manager  

Subject: 
 

Ben Lee Park – Playground Improvement Project 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information the Report from the Parks and Building Planning 
Manager dated July 21, 2014, with respect to the 2014 Enabling Accessibility Fund for 
improvements to the Ben Lee playground; 
 
AND THAT Council supports the City submitting an application to the Employment and Social 
Development Canada (ESDC) for the Enabling Accessibility in Communities Grant as outlined in 
the Report from the Parks and Building Planning Manager dated July 21, 2014; 
 
AND THAT Council approveS $50,000 in funding from the Parks Purchasing & Development 
Reserve for the Ben Lee Park – Playground Improvement Project, pending the award of the 
Enabling Accessibility in Communities Grant to the City; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the 2014 Financial Plan be amended in order to provide this funding. 
 
Purpose:  
 
For Council to support the renovation and retrofit of the playground at Ben Lee Park in order 
to submit for the 2014 Enabling Accessibility in Communities Grant.  A Council Resolution is a 
condition of the grant application. 
 
Background: 
 
ESDC has announced a grant opportunity for renovation, retrofitting or constructing 
community facilities that improve accessibility and participation for people with disabilities. 
 
The grant includes the following conditions; 

 The project will facilitate and improve accessibility for people with disabilities; 

 The delivery of the project must have a maximum duration of 52 weeks; 

 The total amount of funding requested from ESDC must not exceed $50,000; 

204



 Contributions equal to or greater than 35% of the total eligible cost of the project 
must be provided by the applicant or other sources.  The assessment criteria states 
that additional points are given to projects where the applicant is exceeding the 
mandatory 35% contribution; 

 All funded activities are to be completed within 12 months of the anticipated grant 
approval (1 November 2014); and 

 Applicants must demonstrate community support for their project. 
 
Staff have reviewed a number of project opportunities throughout the City and have 
determined that improvements and upgrades to promote inclusive play and accessibility at 
the Ben Lee playground are the best fit to meet the criteria of the grant. 
 
Upgrades to the existing playground would include; 

 Resurfacing the existing engineered wood fibre playground surface with a poured in 
place rubberized surface to make the entire playground area accessible for all users; 

 The addition of inclusive play equipment to complement the existing playground; and 

 Improvements to the existing walkways to promote accessibility to all new and existing 
playground features. 

 
Playground Resurfacing 
One of the elements that define an accessible playground is the surface material.  Smooth, 
compact surfaces are required throughout the entire playground to allow access not only for 
wheelchairs, but for users with a range of mobility challenges.  
 
The proposed rubber surfacing is more accessible for persons with mobility issues than the 
existing engineered wood fibre playground surfacing, which also requires regular maintenance 
to remain compact and to meet the safety requirements for fall zones.  The existing 
playground is also adjacent to the childrens spray park, creating maintenance issues as the 
wood chips regularly need to be swept off of walkways and the water park area.   
 
The proposed rubberized surface is the same product used for the playground at the 
Parkinson Recreation centre, where it popular and has proven to be durable and easy to 
maintain.  It has also received positive feedback for providing a fun and inclusive environment 
for all users. 
 
Playground Equipment 
The project would also include the installation of musical therapy instruments, based on their 
appeal to all ages and abilities and the opportunity at Ben Lee Park to promote an inclusive 
play environment.  The playground equipment will include a variety of instruments and help 
to complement the existing play equipment. 
 
 
Internal Circulation: 
 Amy Nyhof, Landscape Design Technician 
 Lorna Rowland, Landscape Design Technician 
 Lorna Gunn, Grants & Partnerships Manager 
 Genelle Davidson, Financial Services Director 
 
 
 

205



Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
The estimated cost of the project is $100,000.  Costing was determined based on quotes 
received from 3 suppliers and includes staff administration costs and a 5% contingency.  The 
City is requesting $50,000 from ESDC and $50,000 from R079, Parks Purchase and 
Development Reserve.  If the grant application is approved the 2014 Financial Plan will be 
amended.  
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
A letter of support was provided by Starbright Children’s Development Centre an organization 
that provides programming and support for families with children with special needs. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 

Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
Alternate Recommendation: 

 Communications Comments: 
  
 
Submitted by: T. Barton, Parks and Building Planning Manager 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:  J. Vos, Infrastructure Divisional Director 
 
 
Attachments: 

 Ben Lee Park - Playground Improvement Project Concept Plan 

 Proposed Inclusive Play Instruments 

 Letter of Support, Starbright Children’s Development Centre 
 
 
cc:   
Parks Services Manager 
Park & Building Projects Manager 
Grants & Partnerships Manager 
Financial Services Director 

206



 

207



 

208



209



Report to Council 
 
 
Date: 
 

7/23/2014 
 

File: 
 

1840-54 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Planner Specialist, Urban Design 

Subject: 
 

Ellis Street Corridor Plan 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Report of the Planner Specialist, Urban Design 
dated July 23, 2014 with respect to the Ellis Street Corridor Plan; 
 
AND THAT Council endorse the Ellis Street Corridor Plan as a template for road alignments 
and as the basis for coordination of streetscape elements within the Subject Area as 
identified in the report of the Planner Specialist, Urban Design dated July 28, 2014. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To receive Council endorsement for the Ellis Street Corridor Plan as the basis for the 
implementation of road cross sections and coordination of streetscape elements along Ellis 
Street from Bernard Avenue to the Library Parkade. 
 
Background: 
Several properties along Ellis Street are expected to be developed in the near future. These 
include: 
 

 1360 Ellis Street – an addition to the Library Parkade; 

 460 Doyle Avenue – the Innovation Centre; 

 505 Doyle Avenue – a new building for Interior Health Authority;  

 1435 Water Street – the Ellis Street Parkade; and 

 1460 Ellis Street – the west end of the Queensway transit station. 
 
Two of these developments are expected to generate an increase in vehicle traffic in the 
area. These developments are the new IHA building and the Innovation Centre. 

The Library Parkade addition and the new Ellis Street parkade are responses to the parking 
requirements associated with the proposed developments. Additionally, changes to the 
Queensway transit station will be implemented to accommodate revised bus routes using the 
Ellis Street corridor. The result of these changes is pressure on the road right-of-way to 
accommodate a number of new left-turn lanes.  

The Ellis Street Corridor Plan has therefore been prepared to coordinate design and 
implementation of road-related infrastructure. Additionally, it is intended to provide high-

210



level direction with regard to future streetscaping opportunities and to help coordinate 
frontage improvements along Ellis Street in the near-term for the properties identified above. 
To this end, Golder and Associates of Kelowna was hired to prepare a plan for a length of Ellis 
Street from Bernard Avenue to the north property line of the Library Parkade (Attachments A, 
B, C, and D).   
 
The Subject Area was limited to the segment of Ellis Street expected to see a significant 
amount of development in the near future. Noting that Ellis Street from Harvey Avenue to 
Clement Avenue was identified in the 2012 My Downtown! plan as a prime retail corridor 
(http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CStrategic%20Planning%5CDowntown_Plan/2012-02-

28_Downtown_Plan_Report_FINAL.pdf; pg. 41), and that properties along the street, in addition to 
the ones identified herein are expected to develop over the longer term, the components of 
the Plan could be extended beyond the Subject Area on a site-by-site or a block-by-block 
basis. 
 
Highlights of the proposed plan include: 
 
1) A road cross section that includes one vehicle lane and one bicycle lane in each 

direction. 
2) New left-turn lanes at the Ellis Street/Doyle Avenue intersection, at the Bernard 

Avenue/Ellis street intersection, and one in the northbound lane to serve the new Ellis 
Street Parkade. 

 
3) New sidewalks complete with curb and gutter. The sidewalks would be made of sawcut 

concrete for its durability but also because sawcut concrete is a relatively smooth 
surface. Being free of troweled joints, it is a surface best suited to individuals with 
mobility restrictions, e.g., those with wheelchairs or walking aids.  
Sidewalk widths vary in response to the changing curb alignments, from a minimum of 
2.1 metres to about 3.6 metres (including boulevard). Where the road cross section 
allows, additional sidewalk width has been allocated to the east side of the street. The 
rationale for this allocation is that the east side of the street is primarily commercial 
occupancies at street level which could most benefit from the street features, e.g., 
trees, benches, etc. that the additional sidewalk width allows. 
The properties along the west side of the street, with the exception of the Scotiabank 
property, the Federal Building site, and the Interior Health site, are owned by the City 
of Kelowna. It is expected that additional sidewalk width on the west side could be 
obtained through building setbacks in conjunction with future development of the City-
owned sites and through negotiation with the other property owners at such time as 
those sites are developed. 

 
4) Urban Braille to assist individuals with visual impairments by incorporating visual and 

tactile cues into the streetscape. It is intended that the Urban Braille initiative that 
began with the frontage improvements to the Madison and successfully continued with 
the Bernard Avenue Revitalization be a key part of streetscape works within the Subject 
Area. Key components include:  

a. tactile warning strips located at each intersection to alert visually-restricted 
pedestrians that they have reached an intersection. Inserts into the sidewalk 
along the curbs would be bright yellow and patterned with raised discs. The 
high-contrast coloured warning strips would be particularly beneficial to those 
who make up the largest group among the visually impaired, those with some 

211

http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CStrategic%20Planning%5CDowntown_Plan/2012-02-28_Downtown_Plan_Report_FINAL.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CStrategic%20Planning%5CDowntown_Plan/2012-02-28_Downtown_Plan_Report_FINAL.pdf


degree of sight. For individuals who are completely without vision, the 
textured surface would be easy to detect with a white cane or underfoot. 

b. an inlay of pavers running continuously along each block, providing a 
“shoreline”. Like the warning strips, the shorelines, by virtue of their 
contrasting colour and surface finish, would provide a visual and tactile cue 
that the visually-restricted individual is within the pedestrian zone and moving 
in the right direction.  

c. strategically-placed bollards. Two bollards at each corner of the intersection, 
situated behind the warning strip, would align with the outside edge of the 
respective crosswalks, i.e., the edge farthest from the centre of the 
intersection. Once visually-impaired pedestrians using canes detect the 
warning strip, they would be able to follow the strip to the bollard. There, they 
would be able read the name of the facing street and the cardinal direction 
engraved in Braille on the top of the bollard. As the base of the custom-
designed bollards would be rectangular in shape, visually-impaired pedestrians 
would also be able to place the heel of a foot against the base and align 
themselves to enter the crosswalk. Push buttons to activate the audible signal 
would also be mounted on the bollards.   

 
5) Mid-block crosswalks as indicated in Attachment A. Curb bulbs would be constructed in 

conjunction with these crosswalks, thereby reducing the crossing width for pedestrians, 
as well as providing an opportunity for more landscaping and street hardware, e.g., 
benches, bike racks, etc. 

6) Street Trees 
Trees would be planted in beds along with other vegetation. Where planting beds are 
not practical, e.g., would restrict egress from parked vehicles, soil trenches would run 
below the sidewalk. Trenches would be exposed to the surface where trees are located 
and grates would be placed around the trees. Street trees would be Acer rubrum 
‘Northwood’ (Northwood Maple), recommended by Parks staff for their hardiness and 
fall colour. The grate specified would be Elemental, the design of which was funded by 
the Public Art Program in 2000; 

7) Street furniture and hardware 
Street furniture and hardware would be standard specifications, i.e., would not be 
custom designed or fabricated. Locations would be determined at the detail design 
phase.   

The Madison Frontage  
The Madison (1385 Ellis Street) was constructed in 2008/2009. Frontage improvements 
completed in conjunction with the project are not proposed to be affected with the 
exception of a limited portion of the curb bulb on the north-east corner of the Doyle 
Avenue/Ellis Street intersection. The curb bulb will be modified to accommodate a new left 
turn lane for vehicles westbound on Doyle Avenue turning southbound on Ellis Street.  

Outdoor Seating 
There are currently two outdoor seating areas within the Subject Area. These seating areas 
will remain active under the terms of the City’s Sidewalk Café Extension Program 
(http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/Page980.aspx). Any future outdoor seating areas would be 
allowed according to the terms of the Program.  

212

http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/Page980.aspx


Where outdoor seating areas are located next to a place of business, business owners would 
be responsible for maintaining continuity of the Urban Braille shoreline where the sidewalk 
detours around the seating area. 

On-Street Parking 
The plan would result in the loss of 22 on-street, metered parking spaces. The reduction in 
on-street parking is primarily due to the need to provide enough roadway width to 
accommodate the new left-turn lanes. 

Implementation 
Pending Council’s consideration of staff’s recommendations, the Corridor Plan would be 
implemented over the longer term in conjunction with the development of all properties 
along Ellis Street. In the near term, it would be implemented through the frontage 
improvements to the properties identified above as well as in conjunction with construction 
of the curb bulbs associated with the crosswalk at Smith Avenue Street (Attachment E). 
Funding for completion of other sections adjoining City-owned properties would be considered 
as part of future capital budget discussions. These would be the sections in front of the 
Library, Memorial Arena, and the Okanagan Heritage Museum as indicated in Attachment E. 
The new frontages would follow the curb alignments and the vocabulary of streetscape 
elements set out in the report of the Planner Specialist, Urban Design dated July 28, 2014.  
 
In addition to the curb alignments, the left turn lanes at the Doyle Avenue intersection, as 
well as the bicycle lanes in the blocks north of Doyle Avenue would be implemented in late 
2015 to coincide with the openings of the Library Parkade addition and the Innovation Centre. 
The left-turn lanes and the bicycle lanes would be implemented in 2016 to coincide with the 
openings of the IHA building and the Ellis Street Parkade. Other than some adjustments of 
storm water catch basin and streetlight locations, no underground or above ground utilities 
are expected to be impacted by the new curb alignments. 

Next Steps 
Pending Council’s consideration of the recommendations in the Report of the Planner 
Specialist, Urban Design dated July 28, 2014, the Corridor Plan would form the basis for 
coordination of streetscape improvements among the developments identified above.  

External Agency/Public Comments: 
The proposed changes were presented to the DKA Board in April, 2014. The Plan was also 
reviewed by the Accessibility Advisory Committee at its January, 2014 meeting. 

Financial Considerations: 
It is anticipated that the cost of frontage improvements completed according to the proposed 
Plan would be slightly higher than the cost of improvements currently required by the 
Subdivision, Development, and Servicing Bylaw. The premium would be for sawcut concrete 
sidewalks including an Urban Braille shoreline, and if a development was located at an 
intersection, bollards and tactile warning strips. It is noted that Urban Braille within urban 
centres is being considered for inclusion in the Subdivision, Development, and Servicing Bylaw 
which is currently under review. 
  
Where sufficient sidewalk width is available, provision of trees, complete with irrigation and 
sufficient soil volumes is required by the Bylaw. Other components such as tree grates, street 
furniture and hardware, and planting beds are not required by the Subdivision, Development, 
and Servicing Bylaw. With respect to the IHA Building and the Innovation Centre, these 
components could be achieved through negotiation with the respective applicants.  
 

213



Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Communications & Information Services Divisional Director  
Culture Services Manager 
Parks Services Manager 
Transportation Planning Manager 
Urban Planning Manager 
Development Services Manager 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
P. McCormick, Planner Specialist, Urban Design 
 
Approved for inclusion:                     J. Vos, General Manager, Infrastructure 
 
Attachments: A: 2014-28-07 
  B: 2014-28-07 
  C: 2014-28-07 
  D: 2014-28-07 
  E: 2014-28-07 
 
cc: Active Living & Culture Divisional Director 

Civic Operations Divisional Director 
Communications & Information Services Divisional Director  
Community Planning & Real Estate Divisional Director 
Design & Construction Services Divisional Director 

 
 

2014-04-08 Attachment A  

2014-28-07 Attachment B:  – Typical Cross Sections 

2014-28-07 Attachment B - Typical Sections 

214



215



216



217



218



219



E L L I S  S T R E E T  C O R R I D O R  P L A N  

220



B A C K G R O U N D  

Proposed developments 
 Library Parkade addition  
 Innovation Centre 
 IHA Building  
 Ellis Street Parkade 
 Queensway transit station 
 

Downtown Plan (2012) 
 
 

 

221



O B J E C T I V E S  

Establish curb locations and road cross-
sections 

Coordinate streetscape elements for 
future frontage improvements 

222



H I G H L I G H T S  

1) Vehicle and bicycle lanes 
2) Left-turn lanes 
3) New sidewalks 
4) Urban Braille 
5) Mid-block crosswalks 
6) Street trees 
7) Street furnishings & hardware 

 223



Bernard Avenue to Memorial Arena 

Memorial Arena to Library Parkade 
 

224



 

Bernard Avenue to Queensway Avenue 

225



Queensway Avenue to Doyle Avenue 

226



Queensway Avenue to Doyle Avenue 
227



228



Bollard with rectangular base 
 
Tactile warning strip for visually-impaired individuals 
 
Saw-cut concrete is wheelchair friendly 
 
 
 
 
   

The top of each bollard has the 
name of the facing street and the 
address range in conventional text 
and in Braille. 
 

Sidewalk has gentle slope 
down to pavement edge with 
rollover curb for strollers and 
mobility aids. 

229



I M P L E M E N TAT I O N  

230



E L L I S  S T R E E T  C O R R I D O R  P L A N  

231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242


	Agenda
	2. Minutes - July 14, 2014 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 2014 08 11 Report Z14-0013 290 310 Lochview Rd.docx
	4.1 2014 08 11 Attachments Z14-0013 290 310 Lochview Rd.pdf
	4.2 2014 07 28 Report A14-0006 342 Valley Rd .docx
	4.2 2014 07 28 Attachments A14-0006 342 Valley Rd N.pdf
	4.3 2014 07 28 Report Z14-0017 815 Juniper Rd.docx
	4.3 2014 07 28 Attachments Z14-0017 815 Juniper Rd.pdf
	4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10989 (Z14-0017).pdf
	4.4 2014 07 28 Report Z14-0018 1781 Capistrano.docx
	4.4 2014 07 28 Attachments Z14-0018 1781 Capistrano Dr.pdf
	4.4.1 Bylaw No. 10987 (Z14-0018).pdf
	4.5 2014 07 28 Report Z14-0024 505 Doyle Ave.docx
	4.5 2014 07 28 Attachments Z14-0024 505 Doyle Ave.pdf
	4.5.1 Bylaw No. 10991 (Z14-0024).pdf
	4.6 2014 07 28 Extension Report Z10-0044 120 Homer Rd.docx
	4.6 2014 07 28 Attachment Z10-0044 120 Homer Rd.pdf
	5.1 Bylaw No. 10914 (OCP13-0020).pdf
	5.2 Bylaw No. 10915 (Z13-0043).pdf
	5.3 Bylaw No. 10972 (Z14-0014).pdf
	6.1 2014-07-23_Q2-Report-to-Council.docx
	6.1 2014-07-28_Q2-Report_presentation.pptx
	6.2 2014 07 28 Report RTE14-0001 552-554 Leon Ave.docx
	6.2 2014 07 28 Attachments RTE14-0001 552-554 Leon Ave.pdf
	6.3 2014 07 28 Report RTE12-0005 1155 Brookside Avenue.docx
	6.3 2014 07 28 Attachments RTE12-0005 1155 Brookside Ave.pdf
	6.4 2014-07-28 Report - Fascieux Creek Restoration Improvements.docx
	6.5 Report to Council SEKID Boundary inclusion 4050 Casorso Rd 2014-07-21.docx
	6.5 Report to Council SEKID Boundary Attachment A.pdf
	6.6 2014-07-28 Report - Rescind Ownership Housing Agreements.docx
	6.6.1 Bylaw No. 10873.pdf
	6.7 Amendment of Sister Cities Policy.docx
	6.7 2014 07 22  Policy 355 Sister Cities Policy.docx
	6.8 2014 07 28 Service Collaboration Agreement with Alllied Health.doc
	6.8 page 47 health.pdf
	6.8 page 48 health.pdf
	6.8 2014 Service Collaboration.pdf
	6.9 2014-07-28 - Report - Ben Lee Accessibility.docx
	6.9 2014-07-28 - Ben Lee Park - Concept Plan.pdf
	6.9 2014-07-28 - Ben Lee - Proposed Play Instruments.pdf
	6.9 2014-07-28 - Letter of Support - Starbright.pdf
	6.10 2014 07 28 Report - Ellis Street Corridor Plan.docx
	6.10 Attachments A-E.pdf
	6.10 Presentation - Ellis Street Cooridor Plan.pdf
	7.1 Bylaw No. 10936.pdf
	7.2 Bylaw No. 10982.pdf
	7.3 Bylaw No. 10983.pdf
	7.4 Bylaw No. 10988.pdf

